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Chairman’s Statement 2008
F JE # £ 2008

| would like to present to you the results for the year
ended 30th June, 2008. During the year under review,
the Group has strengthened its business segment in
property and resort development and investment after its
disposal of 51% of the issued share capital of Wideland
Electronics Limited (“Wideland”), a company principally
engaged in the manufacturing and trading of electronic
products, in January 2008.

| also have the pleasure to inform the public and
shareholders of the Company that the Group is in
negotiations with J& Land Acquisition and Development
LLC ("J&J"), an independent third party with respect to a
possible sale and purchase of the resort development
project in Panama (“Panama Project”) for a total purchase
price of US$39 million (approximately HK$304.2 million).
Details of the sale and purchase can be found in the
Company’s announcement dated 18th September, 2008.
The management believes that this transaction, if
completed smoothly, will not only contribute a profit of
approximately HK$137.2 million to the Group representing
82% over the total investment cost of the Panama Project
when it was acquired by the Group, but also provide
immediate funds of US$39 million (approximately
HK$304.2 million) to the Group.

In relation to our resort development project in the Beef
Island, the British Virgin Islands (the “BVI Project”), it was
announced by the Company on 18th April, 2008 that
pursuant to the agreement entered into by and among
Quorum Island (BVI) Limited (“Quorum Island”), Interlsle
Holdings Ltd. (“Interlsle”), Applied Enterprises Limited
("Applied Enterprises”) and Applied Toys Limited on 11th
August, 2006 (the "Agreement”) as amended by the
Second Memorandum of Amendments to the Agreement
on 9th April, 2007, the parties to the Agreement have
entered into Third Memorandum of Amendments to the
Agreement and a letter agreement (the “Letter
Agreement”) on 16th April, 2008 to further amend the
terms stated in the Second Memorandum of Amendments
to the Agreement. Upon signing of the Third Memorandum
of Amendments to the Agreement and the Letter
Agreement on 16th April, 2008, Interlsle had directly paid
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to Applied Enterprises an amount of US$1.25 million
(approximately HK$9,750,000) representing the first
installment of Deferred Purchase Price (as defined in the
Agreement). In line with the relevant Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and accounting general practice, the
receipt of US$1.25 million (approximately HK$9,750,000)
has reduced the cost of investment in the joint venture in
the British Virgin Islands (“BVI”), Quorum Island, from
HK$36,469,000 to HK$26,719,000 which has a market
value of approximately US$19,750,000 (equivalent to
HK$154,050,000), there is still an unrecognized gain of
approximately HK$127,331,000.

Based on the above accounting treatment, the
management noted that there was a significant variance
between the book value and the fair value of those assets
held by the Group like the BVI Project. For that reason,
the management is under consideration for the change of
accounting treatment from cost model to fair value model
which can truly reflect the fair values of those assets. If
those assets were restated with change of accounting
treatment in this Annual Report 2008, the total net assets
value (the "NAV") of the Group would be approximately
HK$818 million and HK97 cents per share as opposed to
HK$547 million and HK65 cents per share as stated in
this Annual Report 2008.

RESULTS

The Group’s consolidated profit from continuing operations
for the year ended 30th June, 2008 amounted to
approximately HK$17,904,000 as compared with the profit
of HK$111,328,000 for the corresponding year. The
decrease in consolidated profit from continuing operations
was mainly due to the significant gain on disposal of a
50% equity interest in a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Group, Quorum Island, amounting to HK$127,331,000
recognised in last year. Besides this recognition of
extraordinary profit recognised last year, the results of
the Group achieved a profit of HK$17,904,000 as
compared with a loss of HK$16,003,000 for last year due
to the increase in fair value of certain investment
properties, a gain on disposal of investments properties
and a reduction of administration expenses during the
year ended 30th June, 2008.

¥ JF ¥R & 2008
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PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 30th June, 2008, the carrying values of investment
properties pledged by the Group to secure banking
facilities granted to the Group amounted to
HK$153,500,000 (2007: HK$125,000,000).

BUSINESS REVIEW

In January 2008, the Group completed the disposal of
51% of the issued share capital of Wideland, a company
principally engaged in the manufacture and trading of
electronic products. After the disposal, there remain two
major resort investments in the BVI and Panama and certain
properties investment in Hong Kong and the PRC with the
Group. The Group is then principally engaged in (i) resort
and property development and (ii) investment and property
holding.

(i) Resort and Property Development
BVI Project

The Company formed a joint venture with Interlsle
to develop the BVI project in the BVI, sized
approximately 660 acres (approximately 267
hectares or 28.75 million square feet). The Group
has received US$8 million (approximately HK$62.4
million) and US$1.25 million (approximately
HK$9.75 million) in cash from Interlsle in April 2007
and April 2008 respectively, totally US$9.25 million
(approximately HK$72.15 million) in cash and the
balance of US$22 million is secured by a promissory
note (the “Quorum Note”) issued by Quorum Island,
the jointly controlled entity of the Group and
Interlsle, to the Group. As announced by the
Company on 18th April, 2008, pursuant to the Third
Memorandum of Amendments to the Agreement
entered on 16th April, 2008, both the latest date
on which Quorum lIsland is obliged to pay the
remaining balance under the Quorum Note to the
Company and the latest date on which Quorum
Island shall obtain the initial land and development
loan which is to be arranged by Interlsle, were
changed to 9th April, 2009.
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In relation to the management of the BVI Project,
Quorum Island has hired key staff members in July
2007, including the managing director who is the
lead business person in the development process
of the BVI Project, and the BVI Project manager
who not only has 35 years of experience in
construction in the luxury hotel/resort segment, but
is also the former head of design and construction
of The Ritz Carlton hotel group.

As announced by the Company in the interim results
announcement dated 17th March, 2008, there was
a change in the Prime Minister of the British Virgin
Islands in late 2007 and the Virgin Islands
Environmental Council (“VIEC"), a non-profit civil
environmental organization, has been challenging
several current development projects in BVI that
were approved by the former BVI government,
including the BVI Project. The VIEC has filed a
judicial challenge against the BVI government
challenging the government’s interpretation of the
local environmental regulations, and Quorum Island,
an interested party to the BVI Project, is actively
participating in the defense against the challenge.
Judicial proceedings are underway and the Company
will provide shareholders with updates on the status
of the proceedings and any final judgment when
appropriate. The Company believes that the BVI
Project will commence upon the settlement of the
challenge, and will provide long-lasting and
meaningful economic benefit to the BVI.

The BVI Project is envisioned to be a master-planned
resort community which will include: a five-star
luxury resort hotel with approximately 200 hotel
and condo-hotel units, destination spa, signature
restaurant and conference rooms; a first-class
marina with approximately 135 slips, including
facilities for 15 mega-yachts over 80 feet; an 18-
hole Jack Nicklaus Signature golf course and up to
600 high-end residential units including townhomes,
beachfront residences, oceanview villas, and
secluded mountain estate homes; as well as a
unique artisan and retail village at Trellis Bay.

¥ JF ¥R & 2008
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Panama Project

In June 2007, the Company also acquired land sized
approximately 1,223 acres (approximately 495
hectares or 53.27 million square feet) named Playa
Grande in the Province of Chiriqui in Panama,
(“Panama Land”) which has a 2.2 km beach for a
consideration of approximately US$19,500,000
(approximately HK$152,100,000). To replicate the
business model of the BVI Project, the Company
will partner with renowned expertise in the resort
development industry to study and design the
Panama Project. The project team members will be
similar to those of the BVI Project and funded by
project finance.

The Panama Project is planned to feature a 5-star
luxury hotel, a branded boutique hotel and a luxury
condo hotel, a marina facility and a marina village,
an 18-hole signature golf course, a branded
fractional ownership club, branded ocean-view villas
and branded residential lots. After completion, 800-
1,000 residential units in the various branded
residential will be offered.

In October 2007, the Group acquired a hot spring
located in Borough of San Felix, Chiriqui, Panama.
This hot spring has been certified by ASOTEMPA,
an affiliate of an international medical thermal
association, as one of the medical hot springs in
the world. This hot spring will be an amenity to
the Panama Project. Further to the acquisition of
the hot spring, the Group has signed another golf
course agreement with Jack Nicklaus in respect of
the Panama Project.

After the acquisition of the Panama Land, the Group
has developed a master plan for the project, devised
golf course routing plans, conducted market studies,
environmental studies, IRR studies, and various
studies and tests on the project.
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As per announcement of the Company dated 18th
September, 2008, the Group is in negotiation with
J&J, an independent third party with more than 15
years of real estate sales, development, project
management and property management experience,
who is currently working with four national banks,
with respect to a possible sale and purchase of the
Panama Project for a total purchase price of US$39
million (approximately HK$304.2 million). The
Panama Project comprises the Panama Land
together with the hot spring at Playa Grande in
Boca Chica District of San Lorenzo, Province of
Chiriqui, Panama. The total cost and the book value
of Panama Project acquired by the Group amounts
approximately US$21.4 million (approximately
HK$167 million) and if the disposal of the Panama
Project is completed, the Group will achieve an
estimated profit of approximately HK$137.2 million,
representing 82% over the cost of the investment
of the Panama Project when it was acquired by the
Group. The management believes that the return
of profit of 82% on this transaction is satisfactory.

Investment and Property Holding

The Group's investment properties, mainly in Hong
Kong and the People’s Republic of China continue
to generate a total rental income of approximately
HK$5,876,000 for the year ended 30th June, 2008.

OUTLOOK

After the disposal of Wideland, a company engaged in
the manufacture of the OEM business which had brought
high revenue but a comparative low profit margin to the
Group before the disposal, the liquidity and working capital
of the Group have improved (as at 30th June, 2008, the
current ratio of the Group was 33.6 times as compared
with the current ratio of the Group including Wideland of
6.6 times) and the Group will concentrate its resources in
higher profit margin business such as resort development
and property development and investment.

R

¥ JF ¥R & 2008

BREBE-_ZFEZENFNLA+NBZ
NE AEEEBIE=FIL
(EELEEHE - R - 1BE
ERERMEEEBRATAF 2K
B ENFEOMBRERITE
ERREEAE BB 2 ) A
%4 LA 48 8 H {8 39,000,000% 7T
(#9304,200,000/%% 7T) 2 — I8 1]
HEECDEZFEENRS -BE
518 B 8 3 i ¥ Boca Chica,
District of San Lorenzo, Province
of Chiriqui, Panamaz B2 § +
WABRTH - BEEFIER 28
BN K BRTE{E #) £21,400,0003
7T (#7167,000,0007% 7T) ° fiffH
BEECN2FEEKY - HrtER
A 7 £ #49137,200,0005% 7T+ 8D
SRAEEBAERZEEEH ZK
RE82% - BEEMELEE R
#82% BT AME

MERREZR

AEBZREMRERUNES
EHE - EBE—TTN\EFERA
STHLEFEZHSRKSER
5,876,000/ 7T °

HERE(ETEXEKARRBRES
B HYAAEBRERSEXE - H
BEAKERF B AR) 2% K&
BrrnoRehEELELENE (R
TEZENFAAZTH  AKBZRH
K E336EBLHREFRE (FEEE
i) BIR B6.6f%) - AEEBEFER
RESHBZEBRNEBNERED
X¥BERNEKE -



Applied Development Holdings Limited E H ZX&5 B ER 2 A

Chairman’s Statement 2008
F JE # £ 2008

BVI Project

Although the challenge of the BVI Project raised by the
VIEC delayed the BVI Project, the management believes
that as the BVI Project is beneficial to the economy and
BVI's future domestic national income, it will start very
soon upon the settlement of the challenge.

Panama Project

If the disposal of the Panama Project is completed, the
estimated profit of approximately HK$137.2 million will
be recorded by the Group and an immediate fund of
US$39 million (approximately HK$304.2 million) will be
available to the Group for other good investment
opportunities in the resort and property market in the
PRC and other Asian Regional Area. The management
believes that where the immediate funds are invested in
the new project, it will also bring satisfactory return to
the Group.

In view of the prospects of the resort and property sector,
we will continue to be strategically allied with world-
renowned architects, designers, and resort developers to
develop future resort projects and to bring good profits
to the Group and seek for other appropriate property
investment opportunities in the Asian Region in the future
to boom up the sources of income to the Group.

PORTAL OPERATION

The Group has established a corporate website
www.applieddev.com. The website serves as an electronic
channel to enhance relationships between the Company
and the shareholders by informing them of the most
updated corporate and investor information.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL INFORMATION

As at 30th June, 2008, the Group’s total net asset value
and borrowings amount to HK$547.2 million and HK$42.8
million respectively, representing a gearing ratio of 7.8%
as compared to 22.5% of the corresponding year. In
addition, the majority of the Group’s assets were in Hong
Kong and US dollars, and hence the exposure to foreign
exchange were insignificant to the Group.
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EXPOSURE TO EXCHANGE RATE FLUCTUATIONS

The Group does not engage in interest rate or foreign
exchange speculative activities. It is the Group's policy
to manage foreign exchange risk through matching
foreign exchange income with expenses, and where
exposure to foreign exchange is anticipated,
appropriate hedging instrument will be used.

EMPLOYEE INFORMATION

As at 30th June, 2008, the Group employed a total of 21
(2007: 26 (excluding the disposal company of Wideland))
full-time employees.

The Group's emolument policies are formulated on the
basis of performance of individual employees and are
reviewed annually. The Group also provides medical
insurance coverage and provident fund scheme (as the
case may be) to its employees depending on the location
of such employees.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this
opportunity to express my heartfelt thanks to all of the
staff and business partners for their hard work and
dedication.

By order of the Board
Hung Wong Kar Gee, Mimi

Chairman

Hong Kong, 13th October, 2008
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

E=ZNSEEEABERE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Hung Kin Sang, Raymond, aged 60, Managing
Director, holds a B.Sc. degree in Electrical Engineering
from the University of Illinois and a MBA degree from the
University of Chicago, USA. He has overall responsibility
for the activities of the Company. In April 1976, he
founded the Group and has been actively involved in the
Group's development over the last 32 years.

Ms. Hung Wong Kar Gee, Mimi, aged 60, Chairman,
holds a B.Sc. degree in Economics of Purdue University,
USA in 1971 and a EMBA degree of Cheung Kong
Graduate School of Business, Peking in 2005, 2006 Peking
University FEIE IR BB ES RS R E IR E &£ She
has joined the Group since 1977 and also was a former
Chairman of a former listed subsidiary of our Group. She
has extensive experience in the management and finance
of the electronics industry. She had been a Director of
Tung Wah Group of Hospitals (“Tung Wah") for a few
years and is a Voting Member of Tung Wah and a Trustee
of Friend of Hong Kong Museum of Art.

Mr. Hung Kai Mau, Marcus, aged 26, Director, graduated
from the University of Chicago with a Bachelor’s degree
in Economics. He joined the Company since 2005 as the
Assistant to Chairman. He has taken active role in resort
development projects.

Mr. Fang Chin Ping, aged 66, Director, holds a B.Sc.
degree in Physics from Peking University. He joined the
Group in 1982 and has overall responsibility for the
operations of the Group and other business opportunities
in China. He has over 37 years experience in the electronics
industry.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Lo Yun Tai, aged 63, Independent Non-executive
Director, holds a B.Sc. degree in Mechanical Engineering
from National Taiwan University. He has over 38 years
experience in the electronics industry. His extensive
engineering and manufacturing background s
strengthened by his expertise in corporate management
and operations of some electronic companies.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Lun Tsan Kau, aged 54, Independent Non-executive
Director, holds a Master of Science degree in Electronics
and Computer Science from the University of California at
Berkeley, USA and a Master of Business Administration
degree from the University of Hong Kong. He joined the
Group in 1997. He has over 29 years experience in
investment, manufacturing, banking and real estate
development. He was previously affiliated with several
international banks, an electronics manufacturing
company, a US based investment holding company and a
HK public listed real estate development company.

Mr. Lam Ka Wai, Graham, aged 40, Independent Non-
executive Director, graduated from the University of
Southampton, England with a Bachelor of Science degree
in Accounting and Statistics. He is an associate member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and a member of the American Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. He is currently a Managing Director and a
Head of Corporate Finance of an investment bank and
has around 14 years experience in investment banking as
well as around 4 years experience in Accounting and
Auditing. He is also an Independent Non-executive Director
of Cheuk Nang (Holdings) Limited (stock code: 131), China
Conservational Power Holdings Limited (stock code: 290),
Artfield Group Limited (stock code: 1229), ZZNode
Technologies Company Limited (stock code: 2371) and
Pearl Oriental Innovation Limited (stock code: 632) all of
which are companies listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT & COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Ng Kit Ling, Tess, aged 43, Deputy Financial
Controller and also the Company Secretary. She has over
22 years experience in finance and accounting matters of
listed group companies. She is a Certified Public
Accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, a fellow member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants in United Kingdom and
holds a Master Degree in Accountancy from the Hong
Kong Polytechnic University.
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The directors present their annual report and the audited

consolidated financial statements of the Company for the
year ended 30th June, 2008.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company.
The Group is principally engaged in resort and property
development; property and investment holding. The Group
had been engaged in manufacturing and trading of
electronic products until that business solely operated by
the Group’s 51% owned subsidiary was sold during the
year. The activities of the principal subsidiaries and a jointly
controlled entity of the Group are set out in notes 41 and
18, respectively, to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 30th June,
2008 are set out in the consolidated income statement on
page 33.

The directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend
and propose that the profit for the year be retained.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

During the year, the aggregate purchases attributable to
the five largest suppliers and the largest supplier of the
Group were 70% and 21% of the total purchases of the
Group, respectively. The aggregate revenue attributable
to the five largest customers and the largest customer of
the Group were 63% and 22% of the total revenue of
the Group, respectively.

None of the directors, their associates or any shareholders
of the Company which, to the knowledge of the directors,
owned more than 5% of the issued share capital of the
Company had any beneficial interest in the share capital
of any of the five largest customers or suppliers of the
Group.
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of movements during the year in the investment
properties of the Group are set out in note 15 to the
consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements during the year in the property,
plant and equipment of the Group are set out in note 16
to the consolidated financial statements.

MAJOR PROPERTIES

Details of the major properties of the Group at 30th June,
2008 are set out on pages 110 to 111.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements during the year in share capital of
the Company are set out in note 29 to the consolidated
financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended),
the contributed surplus account of the Company is
available for distribution. However, the Company cannot
declare or pay a dividend, or make a distribution out of
contributed surplus if:

(a) it is, or would after payment be, unable to pay it
liabilities as they become due; or

(b) the realisable value of its assets would thereby be
less than the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued
share capital and share premium.

In the opinion of the directors, the reserves of the
Company available for distribution to shareholders as at
30th June, 2008 amounted to HK$203,006,000 (2007:
HK$225,026,000).
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DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to
the date of this report were:

Executive directors:

Hung Kin Sang, Raymond (Managing Director)
Hung Wong Kar Gee, Mimi (Chairman)

Hung Kai Mau, Marcus

Fang Chin Ping

Independent Non-executive directors:
Lo Yun Tai
Lun Tsan Kau
Lam Ka Wai, Graham
Soo Hung Leung, Lincoln, J.P.
(resigned on 24th January, 2008)

In accordance with Clauses 86(2) and 87(1) of the
Company’s Bye-Laws, Messrs. Hung Kin Sang, Raymond,
Hung Kai Mau, Marcus and Lam Ka Wai, Graham retire
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election. All
remaining directors will continue in office. The terms of
office of the independent non-executive directors are the
periods up to their retirement by rotation in accordance
with the Company’s Bye-Laws.

The directors being proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting do not have any
service contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries
which is not determinable by the Group within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No contracts of significance to which the Company or any
of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of
the Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

At 30th June, 2008, the interests and short positions of
the directors of the Company in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")), as recorded
in register required to be kept by the Company under
Section 352 of the SFO or otherwise notified to the
Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the "Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies
(the "Model Code”) contained in the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing
Rules”), were as follows:

Long position in shares of the Company

EEzRO R BERNDES

R-ZZZNENA=Z+H  BARQF
BIEFESFRBEGD ([FHFRBEER
Bl]) 32 FE 2 ERMATE - KA
REEHRAEANR REREEE (E&
REHFRBEEMEXVES) KD - 8
Bl REFZEZIAR  HIRE
EBBMAERIHABRAR ([XSF])
FHHEEMRA(TEWHRAD) & E™
RAEFETEFRZINZESTR
(MZEFR) BHERRB RS AT
ZHEZMT

RXARRODEFRER

Number of ordinary shares

EBRHA
Held by a Held by Approximate
Beneficial  discretionary controlled % of
Name of directors owner trust corporation Total shareholding
HEEET ] BRER
E=ps BREEAA HeRE NAEE Azt BOl
Hung Kin Sang, Raymond 3,280,000 405,655,584 34,329,000 443,264,584 50.75%
HEAE (Note 1) (Note 2)
(P52 1) (Pt 3£ 2)
Hung Wong Kar Gee, Mimi 9,310,056 405,655,584 34,329,000 449,294,640 51.44%
HERB (Note 1) (Note 2)
(PHEE1) (B 5E2)
Hung Kai Mau, Marcus 2,760,000 - - 2,760,000 0.32%
AR
Fang Chin Ping 100,000 - - 100,000 0.01%
TET
Soo Hung Leung, Lincoln, J.P. 1,100,000 - - 1,100,000 0.13%

gt ERTAFHT
(resigned on 24th January, 2008)
R=FENF— A= tHARHE)
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(1) These shares were held by the following companies:

Malcolm Trading Inc.
Primore Co. Inc.
Capita Company Inc.

Malcolm Trading Inc., Primore Co. Inc. and Capita
Company Inc. are wholly-owned by the Marami
Foundation as the trustee of Raymond Hung/Mimi Hung
& Family Trust. All units in Raymond Hung/Mimi Hung &
Family Trust are beneficially owned by a discretionary trust,
the beneficiaries of which include the family members of
Mr. Hung Kin Sang, Raymond and Ms. Hung Wong Kar
Gee, Mimi.

(2) These shares were held by Applied Investment (Asia)
Limited (“Applied Investment”), a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company.

Save as disclosed above and other than certain nominee
shares in subsidiaries held in trust for the Company by
certain directors at 30th June, 2008, none of the directors,
chief executive or their associates had any interests or
short positions in any shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

The directors and employees of the Company and its
subsidiaries are entitled to participate in the share option
scheme of the Company adopted by the Company on
16th September, 2002 (the “Scheme”). Particulars of the
Scheme are set out in note 30 to the consolidated financial
statements.

18

(M ZERDBTIA

A

Number of
ordinary shares
ZERHE

43,992,883
2,509,266
359,153,435

405,655,584

Malcolm Trading Inc. » Primore Co. Inc.
¥ Capita Company Inc.J B {EA
Raymond Hung/Mimi Hung & Family
Trust{s 5 A Z Marami Foundation® & #
A ° Raymond Hung/Mimi Hung & Family
Trustz 2 H BB —2RELAESE
wnlER MZERETESZEAAR
EHREEEERATREL T 2 REK

8 o

(2) ZEBRNAARF-—2EWBRRESN
REERRARABD(EAREDFHE -

BREXHEBEENRETESUERS
ARTEEFERHBAR ZETH
BABRMD  RZBENFRNA=ZT

B REF THRARIBEZBH
ALY EGEE AR RE ‘Rﬁ&ﬂ*ﬁﬂw

B R 0 s AR B A 1D sl B 55 2 i st SR
BRA

BEROKRESZH

$ T&ﬁﬁﬁ%”?Zi%&@aiﬁ

HARARZZEZT_FNAATRN
HFﬁ?‘xﬁZﬁ AR IR R & ([5T
gl - FHBEZHBERGEMBRE
BI5E30 o




ort 2008 £ ¥}

The following table discloses share options of the Company BWTYTARRIES 2 ARIBERERAT -
granted to the directors of the Company. There were no REE  ARrBERELLSEEZS -
movements during the year.

Outstanding

at beginning
Date of share and end Exercise
Name of directors Notes options granted of the year price
RAEAFEMRRB
RAFRER
EEE8B Fff = BREATAS BREL TEE
HK$
BT
Hung Kin Sang, Raymond (1) 25th April, 2006 45,611,141 0.54
A —EERFWMA=-_+AHA
Hung Kai Mau, Marcus (2) 25th April, 2006 3,000,000 0.54
3t 4 —EERFWMA=-_+HA
Total for directors 48,611,141
BYTESE
Notes: M 5E -

(1) The exercise period of the share options of the Company (1) ML EBREITERAHSF (B
granted to Mr. Hung Kin Sang, Raymond is five years THE) - H2ARGIITERRFE
from the date of grant. There is no minimum vesting AR HEER -
period for the share options of the Company granted to
Mr. Hung Kin Sang, Raymond.

(2) The exercise period of the share options of the Company (2) AR E B REITE IR H3E (Bia

granted to Mr. Hung Kai Mau, Marcus is three years THIEE) - HBRS0% 244G THERKREA
from the date of grant. Except for the requirement that B—FRFIITEGEHIN - ELAREIT
50% of the share options granted must be held for at EARRNE 2 HERE -

least one year before they can be exercised, there is no
minimum vesting period for the remaining 50% share
options of the Company granted to Mr. Hung Kai Mau,
Marcus.
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Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year was
the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangements to enable the directors of the Company to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in,
or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate. None of the directors or their spouses or
children under the age of 18 had any right to subscribe
for securities of the Company or had exercised any such
rights during the year.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

Other than the interests disclosed above under the heading
“Directors’ interests in shares, underlying shares and
debentures” in respect of certain directors, the register of
substantial shareholders maintained by the Company
pursuant to section 336 of the SFO discloses no person as
having a notifiable interests or short positions in the issued
share capital of the Company at 30th June, 2008.

APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of the independent
non-executive directors, an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to the guidelines set out in Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all of
the independent non-executive directors are independent.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

During the year, the Company repurchased 7,605,000
ordinary shares of the Company on the Stock Exchange at
an aggregate consideration of HK$4,854,000. All of the
shares were subsequently cancelled. The nominal value of
the cancelled shares of HK$76,050 was credited to capital
redemption reserve and the relevant aggregate
consideration of HK$4,854,000 was paid out from the
Company'’s retained profits. Details of the repurchases are

KRB FRN ALK EAS,854,000/8 7T
B Fr B8 [0 7,605,000 AN A & 2
B - 2EBORMHEBHIEFH -
D 2 mELLT76,0508 LB LA
BB FE - HEEMRE4854,000
BLHEBARRBRBEFNEZM - EE
BT

as follows:
Total number

of the ordinary Highest price Lowest price Aggregate
shares repurchased paid per share paid per share consideration

Month of B 2R ERr EXREST
the repurchases @ A 4 EZERAH BSE BIKE BRE
HK$ HK$ HK$'000
BT BT FET
July 2007 s 3,115,000 0.890 0.540 2,101
August 2007 = AN 2,560,000 0.810 0.500 1,790
September 2007 ZZEZTtF N A 440,000 0.640 0.610 281
October 2007 —TELFTA 90,000 0.640 0.580 57
November 2007 Z—ZZ+F+— A 430,000 0.550 0.455 219
December 2007 —ZTZE+F+-A 55,000 0.610 0.550 32
January 2008 —ZEENF—H 175,000 0.520 0.415 80
February 2008 —ZEENFZA 20,000 0.415 0.410 8
March 2008 —ZEENF=A 190,000 0.380 0.360 71
April 2008 —ZEZENFHWA 500,000 0.415 0.390 203
May 2008 —ZEZNEFRA - - - -
June 2008 ZZEENFRA 30,000 0.390 0.380 12
7,605,000 4,854

The purchases were made for the benefit of the
shareholders as a whole as they enhanced the net asset
value and/or earnings per share of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of
its subsidiaries had purchased, sold, or redeemed any of
the listed securities of the Company during the year.

BODEREBERRZMAEMEL -
HEBEAESARRSREEFENR
SREREF -

B EXWBEESI - AN E S E K

BARARFALEESTLBEOARA
TR EmZESF -
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DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable and other
donations of HK$1,570,000.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-Laws, or the laws of Bermuda, which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-
rata basis to existing shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float
throughout the year ended 30th June, 2008.

AUDITORS

Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu resigned as auditors of
the Company with effect from 20th May, 2008 and Mazars
CPA Limited were appointed as auditors of the Company
on 20th May, 2008 to fill the casual vacancy so arising.
There have been no other changes of auditors in the past
three years.

A resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company to re-appoint Mazars

CPA Limited as auditors of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Hung Wong Kar Gee, Mimi
Chairman

Hong Kong, 13th October, 2008
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The Board of Directors of the Company (the “Board”) is
pleased to present the Corporate Governance Report for
the year ended 30th June, 2008.

The Company is committed to the good corporate
governance principles and practice essential to safeguard
the interests of its shareholders and uphold accountability,
transparency and responsibility of the Company.

The Company has complied with the code (“Code
Provisions”) in the Code on Corporate Governance
Practices ("CG Code”) set out in Appendix 14 and 23 of
the rules (“Listing Rules”) governing the listing of securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock
Exchange”) throughout the year. After specific enquiries
of each of the Directors, the Directors confirmed that
they have complied with the standards set out in Appendix
10 of the Listing Rules.

The Company regrets to inform shareholders that Mr. Soo
Hung Leung, Lincoln, J.P. resigned on 24th January, 2008.
Mr. Soo had served the Company as non-executive director
since 14th November, 1988 prior to his appointment as
independent non-executive director of the Company on
30th September, 2004. The Board would like to
acknowledge the long term valuable contributions of Mr.
Soo to the Company in the past years with the highest
regard and deepest gratitude.

The Company regularly reviews its corporate governance
practices to ensure that the Company continues to meet
the requirements of the CG Code.

THE BOARD

(i) Board Composition

Executive Directors

1. Mr. Hung Kin Sang, Raymond
(Managing Director and father of Mr.
Hung Kai Mau, Marcus)

2. Ms. Hung Wong Kar Gee, Mimi
(Chairman and mother of Mr. Hung Kai
Mau, Marcus)

3. Mr. Hung Kai Mau, Marcus
(son of Mr. Hung Kin Sang, Raymond and
Ms. Hung Wong Kar Gee, Mimi)

4. Mr. Fang Chin Ping
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RERERRANZE REFEQARZHEE
M ERERRABERB2ERA
RRABFIBAORERSELEERK
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(i)

24

Corpo

Independent Non-executive Directors
1. Mr. Lo Yun Tai

2. Mr. Lun Tsan Kau

3. Mr. Lam Ka Wai, Graham

4 Mr. Soo Hung Leung, Lincoln, J.P.
(resigned on 24th January, 2008)

Save as above, there is no relationship (including
financial, business, family or other material relevant
relationship(s)), among members of the Board and
in particular, between the Chairman and the
Managing Director.

Responsibility

The business and affairs of the Company and its
subsidiaries (“Group”) is under the direction of and
vested with the Board pursuant to the bye-laws of
the Company (the “Bye-laws”). The Board subject
to election by the shareholders in general meeting,
is the ultimate decision-making body of the Group
except in respect of matters reserved for
shareholders. The Board is ultimately accountable
and responsible for the performance and affairs of
the Group. The Board retains oversight responsibility
for all major matters of the Group which include
approving and monitoring all policy matters
managing, overall strategies and budgets, internal
control and risk management systems, entering into
material transactions (especially any transaction with
a conflict of interest etc.), providing financial
information, appointing directors of the Company
and other significant financial and operational
matters. Certain of that authority is delegated by
the Board to the management in order to enable
the management to develop and implement the
Group’s strategic planning and operations, and to
conduct the Group’s day-to-day activities. The Board
diligently monitors the management'’s performance
in that regard but responsibility for conducting the
rests with the

Group’'s daily operations

management.
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The role of the Group’s Chairman is separate from
that of the Group’s Managing Director and their
respective responsibilities are endorsed by the Board
in writing. The Managing Director is responsible
for day-to-day management of the business of the
Group. The Chairman provides leadership for the
Board to ensure that the Board acts diligently and
in the best interest of the Group and that meetings
are planned and conducted effectively. The
Chairman is also responsible for approving the
agenda for each Board meeting, taking into account
of, where appropriate, matters proposed by the
directors of the Company (“Directors”). The
Chairman also actively encourages the Directors to
make full contributions and active participations to
the Board’s affairs.

The Board established two Board committees,
namely the Audit Committee and Remuneration
Committee to oversee particular aspects of the
Group's affairs. The Company reviews the said
delegation arrangements on a periodic basis to
ensure that they remain appropriate to its needs.
The Board and the Board committees work under
the well-established corporate governance practices
in accordance with the requirements of the Listing
Rules and other relevant statutory requirements.

Each Director of the Company is provided upon
reasonable request made to the Board with means,
at the Company’s expense, to seek independent
professional advice in furtherance of his/her duties
if necessary. The Independent Non-executive
Directors are high calibre executives or professionals
with relevant industry experience and provide their
skills and expertise to the Board. Their brief
biographical details are on pages from 12 to 13 of
this Annual Report. They ensure that the Board
maintains high standards of financial and other
mandatory reportings as well as providing adequate
checks and balances to safeguard the interests of
shareholders and the Company as a whole.

The Board regularly reviews its composition and
structure to ensure appropriate levels of expertise
and independence are attained and maintained.
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Appointment and Succession Planning of the
Directors

The Company follows a formal, considered and
transparent procedure for the appointment and
removal of Directors. All newly appointed Directors
who are filling casual vacancy are subject to election
at the first general meeting after their appointments
by the Board. All Directors,
Independent Non-executive Directors are subject to

including the

retirement by rotation at least once every three
years and may be re-elected.

Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted a code of conduct
regarding securities transactions by the Directors
of the Company (the “Securities Code”) on terms
no less exacting than the standard set out in Model
Code for Securities Transactions by the Directors of
Listed Issuers (the “"Model Code”) contained in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. Pursuant to the
Securities Code, the Directors shall notify the
Chairman or his/her alternates in writing of the
specific purpose for dealing in securities of the
Company and have to receive a dated written
acknowledgement before any dealing. All Directors
have confirmed that they have complied with the
required standard set out in the Securities Code
throughout the year.

(iii)
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(v) The attendance record of the Directors at the
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(v) EHRSHE SEZLFEERE

regular meetings during the reporting period is as mREIRAT
follows:
No. of meetings attended/held

Name HE HEEBERE B
Mr. Hung Kin Sang, Raymond AL 7/8
Ms. Hung Wong Kar Gee, Mimi HERHEAL T 7/8
Mr. Hung Kai Mau, Marcus Pa- e 8/8
Mr. Fang Chin Ping F#EFEE 8/8
Mr. Lun Tsan Kau mE IR L& 7/8
Mr. Lo Yun Tai ERTELE 7/8
Mr. Lam Ka Wai, Graham MR B L & 7/8
Mr. Soo Hung Leung, Lincoln, J.P. &t =%4 - SFETFAF 4+

(resigned on 24th January, 2008) (RZZEZNF— A +WAFE) 3/4%

* The total number of meeting was counted up to
24th January, 2008.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established on 20th
April, 2005 and includes a majority of Independent Non-
executive Directors. The Remuneration Committee
comprises of one Executive Director, Mr. Hung Kin Sang,
Raymond and two Independent Non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Lo Yun Tai (Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee) and Mr. Lam Ka Wai, Graham, who was
appointed after the resignation of Mr. Soo Hung Leung,
Lincoln, J.P. on 24th January, 2008. The Remuneration
Committee is responsible for making recommendations to
the Board regarding the Company’s policy and structure
in relation to the remuneration of the Directors and senior
management of the Company. The Committee also reviews
the assessment criteria and remuneration policies and terms
of employment of all Executive and Independent Non-
executive Directors and senior management of the
Company with reference to corporate goals and objectives
resolved by the Board from time to time.
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The attendance record at the meetings during the reporting

period for each of the committee members is as follows:

EHREHHE BRZBgKEZHE
SRS

No. of meetings attended/held

Name "a HESEBREY A
Mr. Lo Yun Tai EREW A 2/2
Mr. Hung Kin Sang, Raymond AL 1/2
Mr. Lam Ka Wai, Graham MR BT E 1/2
(appointed on 24th January, 2008) (RZZEENF-AZTHBEEZE)
Mr. Soo Hung Leung, Lincoln, J.P. Btk g EETAFAL
(resigned on 24th January, 2008) (R=ZZTENF—AZTMHBEFT) 0/1*

* The total number of meeting was counted up to 24th
January, 2008.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprises of Independent Non-
executive Directors, namely, Mr. Lo Yun Tai (Chairman of
the Audit Committee), Mr. Lun Tsan Kau and Mr. Lam Ka
Wai, Graham. All of them have relevant professional
qualifications in accounting or related financial
management expertise. The Audit Committee is responsible
for reviewing and assessing senior management and
external auditors of the Company, the internal control
system and external auditing process and findings, the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group,
Listing Rules and statutory compliance, and for discussing
matters relating to auditing, internal control, risk
management and financial reporting (including the interim
financial report for the six-months ended for each financial
year).

The attendance record at the meetings during the reporting
period for each of the committee members is as follows:

* HESEBHFTEBRE TN NF—A
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EREHHE SBRZBgKEZHE
SRARHEIRIMT:

No. of meetings attended/held

Name ®A HESBERE AH
Mr. Lo Yun Tai EESEE 4/4
Mr. Lun Tsan Kau BRI E 3/4
Mr. Lam Ka Wai, Graham R B R & 4/4
Mr. Soo Hung Leung, Lincoln, J.P. Bt E EETATAET

(resigned on 24th January, 2008) (RZEZENF— A=+ MHAET) 1/1*

* The total number of meeting was counted up to 24th
January, 2008.
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The main duties of the Audit Committee include making
proposals and recommendations to the Board on the
appointment and removal of external auditors and their
terms of engagement and termination as well as
monitoring the independence and effectiveness of the
external auditors and recommending appropriate actions
if required.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

For the year ended 30th June, 2008, payments made to
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, the previous external auditors
of the Company for providing audit and non-audit services
are approximately HK$238,000 and HK$30,000,
respectively. Audit fees payable to Mazars CPA Limited,
the existing external auditors of the Company for providing
audit services is approximately HK$500,000.

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

As the Board believes that a well-designed system of
internal control is crucial to safeguard the assets of the
Group and to ensure reliability of the financial reporting
as well as compliance with the relevant rules and
regulations, a system of internal controls has been set up,
intended to prevent material misstatements and losses and
to manage rather than eliminate risks of failure in
operational systems to achieve the Group’s objectives.

The Board has overall responsibility for the Group's internal
control, financial control and risk management system and
shall monitor their effectiveness from time to time as well
as the scopes and frequencies of audit reviews according
to risk assessment. Special reviews may also be performed
on areas of concern identified by management or the
audit committee from time to time as there are no
establishment of internal audit functions.

During the reporting year, the Directors arranged a review
over the effectiveness of the internal control system of
the Group including functions of financial, operation,
compliance and risk management. The review showed a
satisfactory control system. The review has reported to
the Audit Committee. The Directors also, where necessary,
initiated necessary improvement and reinforcement to the
internal control system.
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TEEARES

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS AND INVESTOR RELATIONS

The rights of shareholders and the procedures for
demanding a poll on resolutions at shareholders’ meeting
are contained in the Company’s Bye-laws. Procedures for
voting by poll have been included in the circulars issued
by the Company accompanying the relevant notices
convening such general meetings and are read out by the
Chairman at the general meeting. The Company has taken
steps to ensure compliance with the requirements about
voting by poll and arrangements have been made for the
voting of each of the resolutions being put to the meetings
to be dealt with by means of poll vote. At general meeting
the Board and the members of Audit Committee and
Remuneration Committee are responsible for answering
questions raised by the shareholders.

In order to provide detailed and up-to-date information
to our shareholders, the Company has a range of
communication channels to ensure its shareholders are
kept well-informed. These comprise of annual general
meetings, annual report, public notices, announcements
and circulars.

The Company seeks to enhance communications and
positive relationships with investors by maintaining regular
dialogues with institutional investors and analysts to keep
them up to date about the business and operation
information and development of the Group, and to reply
to any enquiries from investors appropriately. Investors
are welcome to make enquiries to the Company at its
office in Hong Kong or directly visit the Company’s website
(www.applieddev.com) for any updated corporate and
financial information.

PUBLIC FLOAT

The Board’s knowledge of the public float is based on
information publicly available to the Company. As at the
date of this report, over 25% of the total issued share
capital of the Company was held by the public.

THE BOARD’S STATEMENT

The Company believes that good corporate governance
reflects a high quality of management and operations of
the Group’s operations and business. Good corporate
governance can safeguard the proper use of funds and
effective allocation of resources which in turn, protect the
interests of the shareholders. The management recognises
the importance of a good corporate governance practice
and will use its best endeavours to maintain, strengthen
and improve the standard and quality of the Group's
corporate governance.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

MBBMAZARS

TO THE MEMBERS OF
APPLIED DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Applied Development Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”)
set out on pages 33 to 108, which comprise the
consolidated balance sheet as at 30th June, 2008, the
consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow
statement for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of these
consolidated financial statements in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This
responsibility includes designing, implementing and
maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and
the true and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate
accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that
are reasonable in the circumstances.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit and
to report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981
of Bermuda (as amended), and for no other purpose. We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report. We

B ZBA RS =

Mazars CPA LiMITED

55 B ot A 4

34th Floor, The Lee Gardens,

33 Hysan Avenue, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong
7 Vi i) 0 PR 33 R A B B 45 344

Tel B : (852) 2909 5555

Fax f$ K : (852) 2810 0032

Email ¥ : info@mazars.com.hk

Website #44ik : www.mazars.com.hk
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BN ZE R HRE E

conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to
whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error. In making those risk assessments, we consider
internal control relevant to the entity’'s preparation and
true and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the
directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as
at 30th June, 2008 and of the Group’s profit and cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Mazars CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 13th October, 2008

Eunice Y M Kwok
Practising Certificate number: P04604
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Consolidated Income Statement vear ended 30th june, 2008
REE-TTNFAA=HALFE

Continuing operations

Turnover

Other income

Increase in fair values of
investment properties

Gain on disposal of subsidiaries

Administrative expenses

Share-based payment expenses

Finance costs
Share of results of a jointly
controlled entity

Profit before taxation
Tax credit

Profit for the year from
continuing operations

Discontinued operations
Loss attributable to
discontinued operations

Profit for the year

Attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent
Minority interests

EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE
From continuing and
discontinued operations
Basic

From continuing operations
Basic

From discontinued operations
Basic
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Note
B 2

10

14

2008 2007
—EENF —EEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
T & T TBT
5,876 6,785
9,226 4,179
33,950 10,200
3,648 127,331
(31,619) (35,009)
= (379)
(3,907) (1,838)
298 =
17,472 111,269
432 59
17,904 111,328
(81) (2,013)
17,823 109,315
17,823 110,173
= (858)
17,823 109,315

2.12 HK cents

12.83 HK cents

2.12 HK cents

13.06 HK cents

(0.23) HK cents
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Consolidated Balance Sheet at 30th june, 2008

CEBEEBER -2z 5 A=+5

Non-current assets
Investment properties
Property, plant and equipment
Other assets
Interest in a jointly controlled
entity
Prepaid lease payments
— non-current portion
Available-for-sale investments
Deposits paid on acquisition
of investment properties

Current assets

Inventories

Trade and other receivables

Promissory note receivable from
a jointly controlled entity

Amount due from a jointly
controlled entity

Prepaid lease payments
— current portion

Pledged bank deposits

Bank balances and cash

Non-current assets classified
as properties held for sale

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables

Tax payables

Secured bank borrowings
— due within one year

Obligations under finance leases
— due within one year

Bank overdrafts

Liabilities directly associated

with properties held for sale

Net current assets
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Note
B 5%

15
16
17

19

20

21

22

24

19
25

15

2008 2007
—EENE 2T LF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHT FHT
190,900 159,030
178,429 178,313
1,846 1,846
27,017 36,469
1,712 1,957
921 1,144

- 7,756
400,825 386,515
= 1,898

1,594 13,744
171,600 171,600
16,372 12,955
40 46

- 3,173

1,766 23,299
191,372 226,715
= 59,000
191,372 285,715
2,116 7,623

- 712

3,000 17,853
572 3,582

= 4,539

5,688 34,309

- 8,880

5,688 43,189
185,684 242,526
586,509 629,041
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Consolidated Balance Sheet at 3oth june, 2008

Capital and reserves
Share capital
Treasury shares
Share premium and reserves

Total equity

Non-current liabilities
Secured bank borrowings
— due after one year
Obligations under finance leases
— due after one year

HAEBEERER

—EFNFARA=TH

The consolidated financial statements on pages 33 to 108
were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of
Directors on 13th October, 2008 and are signed on its
behalf by:

Hung Kin Sang, Raymond
Managing Director
BEFHKE

2008 2007
—EENE —ETAF
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
M 5 FHE T T#& T
EARKEE
[i% < 29 8,734 8,804
E 17 % 31 (8,911) (8,911)
[0 m B R #EEe 547,416 534,731
AR 547,239 534,624
ERBEME
BEEFRITEE
— il —F1&EE 27 39,000 92,269
B & AR A A
— il —F1& 28 28 270 2,148
39,270 94,417
586,509 629,041
F3IB3EEFI08EME 2 FE P BERE

ER-_ZTZENFT+AT=-ARESES

Mo REERT LR THEERE
5E

Fang Chin Ping
Director
BEF

EF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in EQUITY vear ended 30th June, 2008

= a5 S L 4k
AR Raz-—s2 sra=1ta.14%

Attributable to equity holders of the parent

BRARREREARLGER
Share Investment Capital Distri-
Share  Treasury Share  options revaluati Other redempti Capital  butable Translation ~ Retained Minority
capital shares  premium  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  profits Total interests Total
Rkt  BRE K& e A4k SERE

Rx  EREH i % EfhEk ZtERE HRERE EXAER i RERE RIEA ait it ait
HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK§'000  HK$'000
tér TEn TEr TEx TRz TEr TAx  TEr  TER  TEx  TEr  TAR  TEn  TER

(Note 1) (Note 2)  (Note 3)
(H&1) (GEZ(EE)
At 1st July, 2006 i e 3
thA-8 9,100 (8,911) 1 8233 64 8,551 11,203 205,038 93,961 65  111,35% 438,661 858 439,519
Gain on fair value changes I fEHERE
of available-for-sale RS
investments EE 2 - - = - 241 - - - - - - 2241 - 2241
Exchange difference arising &850 55
on translation of ZESZER
foreign operations - - - - - - - - - n - 0 - 2
Net income recognised RERER
directly in equity L LION - - - - 2241 - - - - n - 2263 - 2,063
Realised on disposal of HEMHHEE
available-for-sale REER
investments - - - - (1,959) - - - - - - (1,959) - (1,959)
Profit for the year EREA - - - - - - - - - - 10173 10,173 (858) 109,315
Total recognised income ~ AEFEZ
and expense for the year AR - - - - 28 - - - - 2 10173 110477 (858) 109,619
Repurchase of own shares ~ BI&RfH (296) - - - - - 296 - - - (14893)  (14893) - (14893)
Recognition of equity-settled B4 58 ~
share-based NRHBER
payment expenses ftR-RH%R - - - 379 - - - - - - - 379 - 379
At 30th June, 2007 RZBRLE
NAZTH 8,804 (8,911) 1 8,612 346 8,551 11,499 205,038 93,961 87 206636 534,624 - 534,624
At 1st July, 2007 RIZZLE
tA-H 8,804 (8,911) 1 8,612 346 8,551 11,499 205,038 93,961 87 206,636 534,624 - 534,624
Loss on fair value changes A HERE
of available-for-sale ATEEHY
investments BR - - - - (223) - - - - - - (223) - (3)
Exchange difference arising &30 £52
on translation of EREE
foreign operations - - - - - - - - - (27) - (27) - (27)
Net expenses recognised ~ INERER
directly in equity ERE%H - - - - (223) - - - - (21) - (250) - (250)
Profit for the year EREA - - - - - - - - - - 1783 1783 - 1183
Total recognised income ~ AEFEZZ
and expense for the year AR - - - - (223) - - - - ) 1783 17573 B VAYE]
Repurchase of own shares B k{3 (76) - - - - - 76 - - - (4854 (4854) - (484
Exercise of share options Bt EF 6 - 444 (126) - - - - - - B 324 - 324
Realised on disposal HEMBAA
of a subsidiary 25 - - - - - - - (428) - - - (428) - (428)
At 30th June, 2008 RZBENE
~AZTA 8,734 (8,911) 445 8,486 123 8,551 1,575 204,610 93,961 60 219,605 547,239 - 547239
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in EQUItY Year ended 30th june, 2008
B Raz-T \FAAZTALEN

Z X\ mam

2 AL dEE Sz oas
A Em

Notes:

(1

The other reserve of the Group represents the fair value
adjustment at the date of transfer of property, plant and
equipment to investment properties.

The capital reserve of the Group represented contributed
surplus arising from the cancellation of share premium
account of the Company pursuant to a special resolution
passed by the Company on 22nd February, 1999. Current
year’'s movement represented a waiver of loan from a
minority shareholder of a subsidiary of the Group which
has been realised to profit or loss upon disposal of the
subsidiary.

The distributable reserve of the Group arose from the
cancellation of share capital and share premium account of
a subsidiary of the Company, Applied Electronics Limited,
pursuant to a scheme of arrangement which became
effective on 10th January, 1989.

AEBZEMFEER/ERYE  BERR
RHEEREDEMEAFEERE

BEARBRTIBREARTANR-NAAFEZ
A+ BBl —HERIRERAEH
ARBEODBERMELNERER - &
FERHEMNBARMERNAERZ —
B BARZ LB RBAREENESHE
MEBmRRHERHRK -

AEBT SR FREIIBRER —ANNEFE—
AtRRERZ —RLZHHE - SHEA
AENEFER QB ZBRA ROk E K
FEHMESL °
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement vear ended 30th June, 2008

= A

AN s =
HEH e mERas-—ss e A=1ta1aE

OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit before taxation
From continuing operations
From discontinued operations

Adjustments for:

Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment

Dividend income

Finance costs

Gain on disposal of
available-for-sale investments

Gain on disposal of investment
properties

Gain on disposal of subsidiaries

Impairment loss recognised
in respect of trade and
other receivables

Increase in fair value of
investment properties

Interest income

Loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Release of prepaid lease payments

Share of results of a jointly
controlled entity

Share-based payment expenses

Operating cash flows before
changes in working capital

Changes in working capital:
Inventories
Trade and other receivables
Trade and other payables

Cash used in operations
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid

Net cash used in operating
activities

38

BEEy
BR Bt A 7l
RERELLEER

REERIEES

FHEBR :

mE - BERREZ
e

BB KA

[EENDZN
HERHIEERE 2 Wt

HERENE 2 Wi

HEMB LR 2 K
25 R E AR FIA
B R EE R

REWMEFZAVEEEM

M EKA

HENE  BER
RIELEE
EEREMEENRK

1 — R A RS 2 8
H¥4E

I RERNRER

EBESRBAZ
RETETRE

EEELE

wE

CEYET) TTES
CENEI T

REFDFAZRS
ENEENEH

RETHRMACREFE

2008 2007
—EEN\HF —ETLF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FTAT
17,472 111,269
(81) (2,013)
17,391 109,256
6,381 7,703
(17) (805)
5,028 3,878

= (1,959)
(7,152) =
(3,648) (127,331)
979 =
(33,950) (10,530)
(161) (850)

94 =

43 46

(298) -

= 379
(15,310) (20,213)
450 358
1,370 (738)
(71) (2,398)
(13,561) (22,991)
(280) (313)
(13,841) (23,304)
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement vear ended 30th june, 2008

INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition of investment properties
Advance to a jointly controlled entity
Compensation received from
a joint venture partner
Deposits paid on acquisition of
investment properties
Deposits received for properties
held for sales
Dividend received
Increase in pledged bank deposits
Interest received
Proceeds from disposal of
available-for-sale investments
Proceeds from disposal of investment
properties
Proceeds from disposal of properties
held for sales
Proceeds from disposal of
subsidiaries, net
Purchase of property, plant
and equipment
Purchase of other assets
Refunds of deposits paid on acquisition
of investment properties
Repayment of receivable on disposal
of subsidiaries

Net cash from (used in) investing
activities

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Finance charges paid in respect
of obligations under finance leases
Interest paid
New bank borrowings raised
Proceeds from exercise of share options
Repayment of bank borrowings
Repayment of obligations under
finance leases
Repurchases of own shares

Net cash (used in) from financing
activities

Net decrease in cash and cash
equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of the year
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes

Cash and cash equivalents at end
of the year

Analysis of the balances of cash
and cash equivalents

Bank balances and cash

Bank overdrafts

E A

e e R ERas-—ss e A=ta1LEE

SY st
B RITIFFE N
24 A 2

HERHEERERSHA

AL B RE
I E LS RE
6 4 2 7 8 3B
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2008 2007
—EENE —TELF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FETT
(26,517) =
(3,417) (12,955)
9,750 -

= (7,756)

= 8,880

17 805

(59) (114)

161 850

- 27,488
36,477 =
50,120 =
4,845 62,400
(16,072) (154,473)
= (145)
4,948 =

= 33,654
60,253 (41,366)
(226) (491)
(4,802) (3,387)
47,479 157,947
324 =
(98,656) (84,045)
(2,644) (4,788)
(4,854) (14,893)
(63,379) 50,343
(16,967) (14,327)
18,760 33,065
(27) 22
1,766 18,760
1,766 23,299

= (4,539)

1,766 18,760
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Notes to the ansolidc’red Financial Statements
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40

GENERAL

The Company is incorporated in Bermuda as an
exempted company with limited liability. Its shares
are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The addresses of
the registered office and the principal place of
business of the Company are disclosed in the section
headed “Corporate Information” in the annual
report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollar (“HK$"), which is the
functional currency of the Company.

The Company acts as an investment holding company.
During the year, the Group disposed of its entire
interest in a 51% owned subsidiary, Wideland
Electronics Limited (“Wideland”), to an independent
third party. Wideland is principally engaged in
manufacturing and trading of electronic products.
After the disposal, the Group is principally engaged
in resort and property development; property and
investment holding. The activities of the principal
subsidiaries and a jointly controlled entity of the Group
are set out in notes 41 and 18 respectively.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”), which collective
term includes all applicable individual HKFRS, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKAS”) and
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. These consolidated
financial statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure requirements under the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”). A summary
of the principal accounting policies adopted by the
Group is set out below.
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Fi)) £ o AAR 2 EREE
b TR o I b B A 4 3
[ATER] R -

KRB M BERETIAEBTZS -
BIMARRRZINEEEE -

RRAB D —RIEEIERAT) - £
RNEE  AEEHEHER—H
S1%MEB AR - BeEeETFARA
Al ([EEEl) MEHMNE T —H&
BUE=F  BHEEITEREST
HEEMMBERES - %ZHE
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Notes to the Consolidated Finoncicl S’ro’remen’rs

In the current year, the Group has applied, for the
first time, a number of new standards, amendments
and interpretations (“new HKFRSs"”) issued by
HKICPA, which are effective for the Group’s
financial year beginning on 1st July, 2007. The
adoption of the new HKFRSs has had no material
effect on how the results and financial position for
the current or prior accounting periods have been
prepared and presented. Accordingly, no prior
period adjustment is required.

The Group has applied the disclosure requirements
under HKAS 1 (Amendment) and HKFRS 7
retrospectively. Certain comparative information
based on the requirements of HKAS 1 (Amendment)
and HKFRS 7 has been presented for the first time
in the current year.

Save as disclosed above, these consolidated financial
statements have been prepared on a basis consistent
with the accounting policies adopted in the 2007
consolidated financial statements.

Basis of measurement

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis, except for
investment properties and certain financial
instruments, which are measured at fair values as
explained in the accounting policies set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated
income statement from the effective date of
acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal,
as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies in line with those used by other
members of the Group.

e M RE M A

#ﬁiﬁ REBEHXEMNBHE

M AEEMEZEHME
A‘Bﬂ&éﬁﬁﬁéﬁﬂﬁﬁ
HER]) - ZEFEARAEER
T F+A—BEZUHBRF
EER - RN E BT BHHRESE
AR BRI SAE ST R %
BRABARAZEERERT R
WEERFE A TEELR
HAGH % -

mﬁlapwﬁﬁé%@ﬁﬁﬁ
F19R (KB REBY WS
HAFITRETZ2HBERE - &
?%Fﬁﬂﬁ@%é%@ﬁﬁ%
F19R (B REBY WS
HAFIFHERRAFEER
275 o

BT EXXFraioh - AirE B SR
EIRBE AR 2007F 0424 Bt
BREN—BY BB RMBR -

SHEEE

BRIAT 2Tt BERAEDIHIRE Y
ERETERMIARATEHNE
S - RER A BB RERIIREBE
SERRAEERE -

RERBEEE

REFBREREART REH
ENCIA b =

AEFRBALEZHWBERRZ
EERTBERTE WEEREH
e ELE H &AM E B IE AR
BlRERA -

FEE  MBARZEBR
SHEASEEMARMRLER
MEREPHAE -

41



Applied Development Holdings Limited E H ZX&5 B ER 2 A

Notes to the ansolidc’red Financial Statements
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All intra-group transactions, balances, income and
expenses are eliminated on consolidation.

Minority interests in the net assets of consolidated
subsidiaries are presented separately from the
Group’s equity therein. Minority interests in the net
assets consist of the amount of those interests at
the date of the original business combination and
the minority’s share of changes in equity since the
date of the combination. Losses applicable to the
minority in excess of the minority’s interest in the
subsidiary’s equity are allocated against the interests
of the Group except to the extent that the minority
has a binding obligation and is able to make an
additional investment to cover the losses.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity in which the Company has
the power to govern the financial and operating
policies so as to obtain benefits from its activities.

In the Company’s balance sheet as set out in note
40, investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost
less accumulated impairment losses. The carrying
amount of the investments is reduced to its
recoverable amount on an individual basis. Results
of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company
on the basis of dividends received and receivable.

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or building that
are held by owner or lessee under finance lease to
earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation.
These include properties held for a currently
undetermined future use and properties that are
held under operating lease, which satisfy the
definition of investment property.
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Notes to the Consolidated Finoncicl S’ro’remen’rs

On initial recognition, investment properties are
measured at cost, including any directly attributable
expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are measured using the fair
value model. Gains or losses arising from changes
in the fair value of investment properties are
included in profit or loss for the period in which
they arise. The fair value of investment properties
is based on a valuation by an independent valuer
who holds a recognised professional qualification
and has recent experience in the location and
category of property being valued.

An investment property is derecognised upon
disposal or when the investment property is
permanently withdrawn from use or no future
economic benefits are expected from its disposals.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the
asset (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset) is included in profit or loss for the period in
which the item is derecognised.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, other than
properties under development, are stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses.

Properties under development are stated at cost
less accumulated impairment losses. Cost includes
development expenditure, borrowing costs
capitalised and other directly attributable expenses
incurred during the development period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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e MRS M

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of
items of property, plant and equipment, other than
properties under development, over their estimated
useful lives from the date on which they are
available for use and after taking into account of
their estimated residual value, using the straight-
line method, at the following rates per annum:

Freehold land Nil
Leasehold land and Over the shorter of the
buildings term of the leases or
25 years, whichever is
shorter

Leasehold improvements 20%

10% to 25%

10% to 25%

Plant and machinery
Furniture, fixtures and
equipment

Motor vehicles 10% to 33';,%
Motor boats 10% to 20%

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated
over their expected useful lives on the same basis
as owned assets or, whereas shorter, the terms of

the relevant leases.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the item) is included in
profit or loss for the period in which the item is
derecognised.

Prepaid lease payments

Prepaid lease payments are up-front payments to
acquire fixed-term interests in lessee-occupied land.
The premiums are stated at cost and are amortised
over the period of the lease on a straight-line basis
to profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Other assets

Other assets are antiques held for long-term
investment purposes and are stated at cost less
accumulated impairment losses.

Jointly controlled entity

Joint venture arrangements that involve the
establishment of a separate entity in which venturers
have joint control over the economic activity of the
entity are referred to as a jointly controlled entity.

The results and assets and liabilities of the jointly
controlled entity are incorporated in the
consolidated financial statements using the equity
method of accounting. Under the equity method
of accounting, investment in jointly controlled entity
is carried in the consolidated balance sheet at cost
as adjusted for post-acquisition changes in the
Group's share of net assets of the jointly controlled
entity, less accumulated impairment loss. When the
Group's share of losses of a jointly controlled entity
equals or exceeds its interest in that jointly
controlled entity (which includes any long-term
interests that, in substance, form part of the
Group’s net investment in the jointly controlled
entity), the Group discontinues recognising its share
of further losses. An additional share of losses is
provided for and a liability is recognised only to
the extent that the Group has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on
behalf of that jointly controlled entity.

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the
Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of the
jointly controlled entity recognised at the date of
acquisition is recognised as goodwill. The goodwill
is included within the carrying amount of the
investment and is assessed for impairment as part
of the investment.
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Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair
value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities over the cost of acquisition,
after reassessment, is recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

When a group entity transacts with a jointly
controlled entity of the Group, unrealised profits
or losses are eliminated to the extent of the Group's
interest in the jointly controlled entity, except to
the extent that unrealised losses provide evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred, in which
case, the full amount of losses is recognised.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised on the consolidated balance sheet when
a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and
financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition or issue of financial assets and
financial liabilities (other than financial assets and
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value
of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial
assets or financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit
or loss.

Financial assets

The Group's financial assets are classified into one
of the two categories, which are loans and
receivables and available-for-sale financial assets.
All regular purchases or sales of financial assets are
recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular purchases or sales are purchases or sales
of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the time frame established by regulation or
convention in the market place. The accounting
policies adopted in respect of each category of
financial assets are set out below.
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Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. At each balance
sheet date subsequent to initial recognition, loans
and receivables are carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less accumulated
impairment losses. An impairment loss is recognised
in profit or loss when there is objective evidence
that the asset is impaired, and is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the original effective interest rate.
Impairment losses are reversed in subsequent
periods when an increase in the asset’s recoverable
amount can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised,
subject to a restriction that the carrying amount of
the asset at the date the impairment is reversed
does not exceed what the amortised cost would
have been had the impairment not been recognised.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative
financial assets that are either designated at this
category or not classified in any of the other
categories of financial assets. They are measured
at fair value with changes in value recognised as a
separate component of equity until the assets are
sold, collected or otherwise disposed of, or until
the assets are determined to be impaired, at which
time the cumulative gain or loss previously reported
in equity is transferred to profit or loss.

When an available-for-sale financial asset is
impaired, an amount comprising the difference
between its acquisition cost (net of any principal
repayment and amortisation) and current fair value,
less any previously recognised impairment loss, is
transferred from equity to profit or loss. Reversal
of impairment loss of available-for-sale equity
instrument is recognised in equity. Reversal of
impairment loss of available-for-sale debt
instruments are reversed through profit or loss, if
the increase in fair value of the instrument can be
objectively related to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognised in profit or loss.
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Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued
by a group entity are classified according to the
substance of the contractual arrangements entered
into and the definitions of a financial liability and
an equity instrument.

Financial liabilities

The Group’s financial liabilities are recognised
initially at their fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using effective interest
method, unless the effect of discounting would be
insignificant, in which case they are stated at cost.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of the Group after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments
issued by the Company are recorded at the
proceeds, net of direct issue costs.

Treasury shares

Applied Investment (Asia) Limited (“Applied
Investment”) became a subsidiary of the Company
in 1995. On consolidation, the shares in the
Company held by Applied Investment have been
accounted for using the treasury stock method
whereby equity attributable to the equity holders
of the Company is reduced by the carrying amount
of the shares in the Company held by Applied
Investment at the date when Applied Investment
became the subsidiary of the Company. On disposal
of the shares in the Company held by Applied
Investment, consideration received is recognised
directly in equity. The difference between the sale
consideration and the carrying amount of the shares
disposed of is recognised in retained profits. No
gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.
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Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights
to receive cash flows from the assets expire, or the
financial assets are transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of the financial assets. On
derecognition of a financial asset, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum
of the consideration received and the cumulative
gain or loss that had been recognised directly in
equity is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial
liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost, which comprises all costs of
purchase and, where applicable, cost of conversion
and other costs that have been incurred in bringing
the inventories to their present location and
condition, is calculated using the first-in, first-out
method. Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business less the estimated costs of completion and
the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Non-current assets classified as held for sale

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified
as held for sale if their carrying amounts will be
recovered principally through a sale transaction
rather than through continuing use. This condition
is regarded as met only when the sale is highly
probable and the asset or disposal group is available
for immediate sale in its present condition.

Non-current assets and disposal groups classified
as held for sale are measured at the lower of the
assets’ and disposal groups’ previous carrying
amounts and fair value less costs to sell.
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Impairment of non-financial assets

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews
internal and external sources of information to
determine whether the property, plant and
equipment, investments in antiques, subsidiaries and
a jointly controlled entity have suffered an
impairment loss or impairment loss previously
recognised no longer exists or may be reduced. If
any such indication exists, the recoverable amount
of the asset is estimated, based on the higher of
its fair value less costs to sell and value in use.
Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates
the recoverable amount of the smallest group of
assets that generates cash flows independently (i.e.
a cash-generating unit).

If the recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-
generating unit is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset
or cash-generating unit is reduced to its recoverable
amount. Impairment losses are recognised as an
expense immediately.

A reversal of impairment loss is limited to the
carrying amount of the asset or cash-generating
unit that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior years.
Reversal of impairment loss is recognised as income
immediately.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and when
the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be
measured reliably, with reference to fair value of
consideration received or receivable, and on the
following bases.

Sale of goods is recognised on transfer of risks and
rewards of ownership, which generally coincides
with the time when the goods are delivered to
customers and the title is passed.
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Rental income from operating leases is recognised
when the properties are let out and on a straight-
line basis over the lease terms.

Dividend income from investments is recognised
when the Group’s rights to receive payment have
been established.

Interest income from financial asset is accrued on a
time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding
and at the effective interest rate applicable.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other
leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as
assets of the Group at their fair value at the
inception of the lease or, if lower, at the present
value of the minimum lease payments. The
corresponding liability to the lessor is included in
the consolidated balance sheet as finance lease
obligations. Lease payments are apportioned
between finance charges and reduction of the lease
obligations so as to achieve a constant rate of
interest on the remaining balance of the liability.
Finance charges are charged directly to profit or
loss unless they are directly attributable to qualifying
assets, in which case they are capitalised in
accordance with the Group’s policy on borrowing
costs.

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged
to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
terms of the relevant lease. Benefits received and
receivable as an incentive to enter into an operating
lease are recognised as a reduction of rental expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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Leasehold land and building

The land and building elements of a lease of land
and building are considered separately for the
purpose of lease classification. Leasehold land which
title is not expected to pass to the lessee by the
end of the lease term is classified as an operating
lease unless the lease payments cannot be allocated
reliably between the land and building elements, in
which case, the entire lease is classified as a finance
lease.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each
individual group entity, transactions in currencies
other than the functional currency of that entity
(foreign currencies) are recorded in its functional
currency (i.e. the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates) at the
rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At each balance sheet date, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the balance
sheet date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value
that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when
the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items
that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the translation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they arise. Exchange differences arising
on the retranslation of non-monetary items carried
at fair value are included in profit or loss for the
period except for differences arising on the
retranslation on non-monetary items in respect of
which gain and losses are recognised directly in
equity, in which cases, the exchange differences
are also recognised directly in equity.
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For the purposes of presenting the consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the
Group’s foreign operations are translated into the
presentation currency of the Group (i.e. HK$) at
the rate of exchange prevailing at the balance sheet
date, and their income and expenses are translated
at the average exchange rates for the year, unless
exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the
period, in which case, the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of transactions are used. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised as a
separate component of equity (the translation
reserve). Such exchange differences are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which the foreign
operation is disposed of.

Retirement benefit scheme

Payment to defined contribution retirement benefit
scheme is charged as expenses when employees
have rendered service entitling them to the
contributions.

Details of the retirement benefit scheme are set
out in note 42.

Equity-settled share-based payment
transactions

Share options granted to employees of the Group

The fair value of services received determined by
reference to the fair value of share options granted
at the grant date is expensed on a straight-line
basis over the vesting period, with a corresponding
increase in share options reserve in equity.

At each balance sheet date, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that are
expected to ultimately vest. The impact of the
revision of the estimates, if any, is recognised in
profit or loss with a corresponding adjustment to
share options reserve.

At the time when the share options are exercised,
the amount previously recognised in share options
reserve will be transferred to share premium. When
the share options are forfeited after the vesting
date or are still not exercised at the expiry date,
the amount previously recognised in share options
reserve will be transferred to retained profits.
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Borrowings costs

Borrowings costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction and production of
qualifying assets are capitalised as part of the cost
of those assets. Capitalisation of such borrowing
costs ceases when the assets are substantially ready
for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised as and
included in finance costs in profit or loss for the
period in which they are incurred.

Taxation

The charge for current income tax is based on the
results for the year as adjusted for items that are
non-assessable or disallowed. It is calculated using
tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method,
on all temporary differences at the balance sheet
date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts in the financial
statements. However, if the deferred tax arises from
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction other than a business combination that
at the time of the transaction affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss, it is
not accounted for.

The deferred tax liabilities or assets are measured
at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the
period when the asset is recovered or liability is
settled, based on the tax rates and the tax laws
that have been enacted or substantively enacted at
the balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profit will be available against which
the deductible temporary differences, tax losses and
credits can be utilised.
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Cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow
statement, cash equivalents represent short-term
highly liquid investments which are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of change in
value, net of bank overdrafts.

Related parties

A party is related to the Group if

directly, or indirectly through one or more
intermediaries, the party controls, is
controlled by, or is under common control
with, the Group; or has an interest in the
Group that gives it significant influence over
the Group; or has joint control over the
Group;

the party is an associate of the Group;

the party is a joint venture in which the
Group is a venturer;

the party is a member of the key
management personnel of the Group;

the party is a close member of the family of
any individual referred to in (a) or (d);

the party is an entity that is controlled, jointly
controlled or significantly influenced by or
for which significant voting power in such
entity resides with, directly or indirectly, any
individual referred to in (d) or (e); or

the party is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of the Group,
or of any entity that is a related party of the
Group.
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Critical accounting estimates and judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies, management has made various estimates
and judgements which are based on historical
experience and other factors, including expectations
of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances. Estimates and judgements
are continually evaluated. The key source of
estimation uncertainty and critical judgements made
in applying accounting policies that result in
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to
the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in the
next financial year or significantly affect the
amounts recognised in the financial statements are
discussed below:

(i) Key sources of estimation uncertainty

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The management determines the estimated
useful lives of the Group’s property, plant
and equipment based on the historical
experience of the actual useful lives of the
relevant assets of similar nature and
functions. The estimated useful lives could
be different as a result of actual usage and
maintenance, which could affect the related
depreciation charges included in profit or
loss.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

The management determines whether the
Group’s property, plant and equipment is
impaired at least on an annual basis or where
an indication of impairment exists. This
requires an estimation of the recoverable
amount of the property, plant and
equipment, which is equal to the higher of
net selling price or the value in use.
Estimating the value in use requires the
management to make an estimate of the
expected future cash flows from the
property, plant and equipment and also to
choose a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate the present value of those cash
flows. Any impairment will charge to profit
or loss.
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Impairment of loans and receivables

The management determines the provision
for impairment of the Group’s loans and
receivables based on the current
creditworthiness and the past collection
history of each customers and other debtors
and the current market condition. If the
financial conditions of the Group's customers
and other debtors were to deteriorate,
resulting in an impairment of their ability to
make payments, provision may be required.

Impairment of investments and receivables

The Company and the Group assess annually
if their investments in subsidiaries and a
jointly controlled entity have suffered any
impairment in accordance with HKAS 36 and
follow the guidance of HKAS 39 in
determining whether promissory note
receivable and/or amounts due from those
entities are impaired. Details of the approach
are stated in the respective accounting
policies. The assessment requires an
estimation of future cash flows, including
expected dividends, from the assets and the
selection of appropriate discount rates.
Future changes in financial performance and
position of these entities would affect the
estimation of impairment loss and cause the
adjustments of their carrying amounts.

Critical judgements made in applying
accounting policies

Properties held for capital appreciation

The Group’s investment properties in Hong
Kong with a carrying value of
HK$153,500,000 are currently used as
directors’ quarter. However, it is the Group'’s
intention to hold the properties for capital
appreciation but not for own use. The Group
has appointed a property agent to seek for
potential buyers in the market. Accordingly,
the properties have been accounted for as
investment properties instead of property,
plant and equipment in the consolidated
financial statements.

(if)

B R K e WK IR RUE
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B E W RIRTTT
BREABEARAEBER R
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REERED -

BE K WA RE
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a7 RI 35 3658 AT 1l OB /B8
DA N —EHRZEH R E
ZEREBREBLEEMR
B TREEESER
5 395 Ky 45 5| B8 7E R WK
AEBRREWRZEFERN
RIBBERELERE - B
TENHBENTENE
RTERER T o FHA AT K
BEREERNRARSR
E(BREAHKRE) - 1=
BEMFTRE - ZFE
BARM BRI FAORE R
KRBT ERER
BibET > AimAREHK
HE -

FEH & &t B 6 E ZRTE

BEARREDE

AEBEEENREME
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Deferred taxation on fair value gain of
investment properties in Hong Kong

At the balance sheet date, the accumulated
fair value gain of the Group’s investment
properties in Hong Kong amounted to
HK$94,500,000. The Group’s plan is to sell
the properties to the market. Until the date
the disposal is taken place, the properties
would be occupied by the directors on a
temporary basis. Therefore, no rental income
is expected to be generated from the
properties up to their disposal. As a result,
management considers the carrying amount
of these investment properties will only be
recovered through sale. With capital gain
being exempted from Hong Kong Profits Tax,
management considers no deferred tax
liability shall be recognised in respect of the
temporary differences arising from the
accumulated fair value gain.

Deferred taxation on fair value gain of
investment properties in the PRC

In accordance with the applicable laws and
regulations in the PRC, the Group is subject
to Land Appreciation Tax when it realises its
accumulated fair value gain of its investment
properties in the PRC of approximately
HK$26,200,000 through disposal of the
relevant investment properties. Management
considers the Group is going to hold the
investment properties for rental income with
no intention to dispose of in the foreseeable
future. In addition, the current corporate
structure allows the Group to realise the
accumulated fair value gain of the investment
properties by disposal of the subsidiary that
currently owns the investment properties.
Thus no deferred tax liability has been
recognised for Land Appreciation Tax in
respect of the temporary differences arising
from the accumulated fair value gain.
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Future changes in HKFRS

The Group has not early applied the following new
amendments or

and revised

interpretations that have been issued but are not

yet effective.
HKAS 1 (Revised)
HKAS 23 (Revised)
HKAS 27 (Revised)
HKAS 32 & 1
(Amendments)
HKFRS 2
(Amendment)
HKFRS 3 (Revised)

HKFRS 8

HK(IFRIC) - Int 12

HK(IFRIC) - Int 13

HK(IFRIC) - Int 14

HK(IFRIC) - Int 15

HK(IFRIC) - Int 16

standards,

Presentation of Financial Statements'
Borrowing Costs'
Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statements?
Puttable Financial Instruments and
Obligations Arising on Liquidation'
Share-based Payment - Vesting
Conditions and Cancellations'
Business Combinations?

Operating Segments'

Service Concession Arrangements®

Customer Loyalty Programmes*

HKAS 19 - The Limit on a Defined
Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding
requirements and their Interaction?

Agreements for the Construction
of Real Estate'

Hedges of a Net Investment
in a Foreign Operation®

BRVBEREN ZRREDH

AEBEIY EIBF KA NI ERM
18 i R A R 2 37 AT I B 3T 0

A - BRI -

BA G ERE 15
(B %)

BB EAFE 2357
(E3)

BB G EAE 275
(B %)
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RE1H (EIEET)
BB RS R
E2% (&)

BAMBEREER
% 3% (B 3)
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F 8%
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mEZE®)

- ZBE12%
&R (AR BRE
mEZE®)

- ZEBE13%
&R (AR BRE
mEZE®)

- ZRBE 145

&R (BARABRE
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- ZBE15%

B (BARRBRE
mEZE®)
- ZEZE16%

MBHER 2T

g
111'@6}7—/22'&
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B ITAR
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Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1st January, 2009

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1st July, 2009

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1st January, 2008

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1st July, 2008

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1st October, 2008

The directors anticipate that the application of the

above new and revised standards, amendments or

interpretations will have no material impact on the

results and the financial position of the Group.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(a)

Financial risk management objectives
and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments
include available-for-sale investments, trade
and other receivables, promissory note
receivable and amount due from a jointly
controlled entity, pledged bank deposits,
bank balances and cash, trade and other
payables, secured bank borrowings,
obligations under finance leases and bank
overdrafts. Details of these financial
instruments are disclosed in the respective
notes. The risks associated with these
financial instruments and the policies on how
to mitigate these risks are set out below.
Management manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures
are implemented on a timely and effective
manner.
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Market risk

Currency risk

The Group is exposed to foreign currency
risk primarily on the promissory note
receivable from a jointly controlled entity and
the Group’s operation in the British Virgin
Islands (“BVI”) and Panama. The currency
giving rise to this risk is United States dollars
("US$"). The Group does not hedge its
foreign currency risks because the rate of
exchange between HK$ and US$ is stable
under current market condition and the
existing currency exchange policies adopted
by the Hong Kong Government.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to market risk for
changes in interest rates relates primarily to
the Group's secured bank borrowings and
obligations under finance leases with a fixed
or floating interest rate as at the balance
sheet date. The interest rates and terms of
repayment have been disclosed in notes 27
and 28 to the consolidated financial
statements. The Group currently does not
have a policy to hedge against the interest
rate risk as management does not expect
any significant interest rate risk as at the
balance sheet date.

The sensitivity analysis below has been
determined assuming that the change in
interest rates had occurred at the balance
sheet date and had been applied to secured
bank borrowings that would have a
significant effect to the profit or loss. A
change of 100 basis points (“bps”) was
applied to the yield curves at the respective
balance sheet date.

B W BHRE M
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At the balance sheet date, if interest rates
had been 100 basis points higher/lower and
all other variables were held constant, the
Group’s net profit would decrease/increase
by approximately HK$420,000 (2007:
HK$1,100,000), but there would be no
impact on the other equity reserves. The
Group's sensitivity to interest rates has been
decreased during the year mainly due to the
reduction in variable rate financial liabilities.

The sensitivity analysis above has been
determined assuming that the change in
interest rates had occurred at the balance
sheet date and had been applied to the
exposure to interest rate risk for the secured
bank borrowings in existence at that date.
The 100 basis point increase or decrease
represents management’s assessment of a
reasonably possible change in interest rates
over the period until the next annual balance
sheet date. The analysis is performed on the
same basis for 2007.

Price risk

The Group is exposed to equity security price
risk through the available-for-sale
investments. Management manages this
exposure by maintaining a portfolio of
investments with different risk profiles.

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that debtors will
default on their obligations to repay the
amounts due to the Group, resulting in a
loss to the Group. The Group's credit risk is
mainly attributable to the promissory note
receivable and amount due from a jointly
controlled entity.
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The management closely monitors the
financial position of the jointly controlled
entity and is ready to take appropriate
actions to safeguard the interest of the
Group as and when necessary. Therefore,
the Group’s exposure to credit risk is to a
large extent limited. The maximum exposure
to credit risk is represented by the carrying
amount of the promissory note receivable
and amount due from a jointly controlled
entity as reported in the Group’s balance
sheet.

Liquidity risk

The Group’s objective is to maintain a
balance between continuity of funding and
flexibility through banking facilities available.
At the balance sheet date, unutilised banking
facilities available to the Group was
approximately HK$48,000,000 (2007:
HK$30,000,000).

The maturity profile of the Group's financial
liabilities at the balance sheet date based on
contractual undiscounted payments are
summarised below:

B W BHRE M
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AEBEHEZERBHFTERE
ERMEHES RIBITRE
HEFELEG HEEESR
BERB  KEBRBER
CHERTBEEELN A
48,000,000/ L (Z & ZF
+ % : 30,000,000/
JC) °©

EEEBEXRA  A&E
MR ERESAIFTR]
BRI IR IR B M 28
gEERMT

3

i

On demand
or within
one year 1-2 years 2-3 years Total
REX
R 2
HOR—F 122F 2835 Azt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TET TER
At 30th June, 2008 R-BEN\E
~AA=TH
Trade and other payables 5 R EMERNFE 2,116 = = 2,116
Secured bank borrowings EEABRITEER 3,978 3,907 36,569 44,454
Obligations under finance leases &% 78 #) & & 604 282 - 886
6,698 4,189 36,569 47,456
At 30th June, 2007 R-ZB2LE
~A=tH
Trade and other payables féf 5 N B A0 FE S 508 7,623 - - 7,623
Tax payable FERBIE 712 - - 712
Secured bank borrowings E%W%Emﬁ““ 22,823 7,825 93,388 124,036
Obligations under finance leases @b % 47 7% & 3,850 2,104 113 6,067
Bank overdrafts RITEX 4,925 = = 4,925
39,933 9,929 93,501 143,363
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(b) Categories and fair value of financial (b) HMBEIANSERATE
instruments
The carrying amounts of each of the TG E R B S & E K
following categories of financial assets and MBAGREEY S
financial liabilities are set out as follows: T
2008 2007
—ZEE)N\HF i3-S o S
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET F& T
Loans and receivables: BEEREI :
Trade and other receivables %’%&E@f%;ﬂilﬁ 1,594 13,744
Promissory note receivable from 7 — [ £t & 2 & A 7 )
a jointly controlled entity 7%)1?%)%&“451‘ 171,600 171,600
Amount due from a jointly R—EEREH A _J E’\J
controlled entity & 518 16,372 12,955
Pledged bank deposits B RITER - 3,173
Bank balances and cash RITHEENRE® 1,766 23,299
191,332 224,771
Available-for-sale financial assets: A] £t §% & &9 B 7% & &= -
Available-for-sale investments AHEERE 921 1,144
Financial liabilities measured LABESHRK NFTE 2
at amortised cost: HBHAaE:
Trade and other payables E 5 K E A e 2,116 7,623
Tax payables JE B 18 - 712
Secured bank borrowings EHRBRITEER 42,000 110,122
Obligations under finance leases &t& fH 49 7F 4 842 5,730
Bank overdrafts R1TEX - 4,539
44,958 128,726

REEEZER - EHA
AERERNIITZHH
SERYGE 2 EREE
T HATFE -

In the opinion of the directors, the carrying
amounts of the financial assets and liabilities
as reported in the consolidated balance sheet
approximate their fair value.
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CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The objectives of the Group’s capital management
are to safeguard its ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders, to maintain an
optimal capital structure, to reduce the cost of
capital and to support the Group’s stability and
growth.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and
manages its capital structure to ensure optimal
capital structure and shareholder returns, taking into
consideration the future capital requirements of the
Group. In order to maintain or adjust the capital
structure, the Group may adjust the amount of
dividends paid to shareholders, issue new shares or
return capital to shareholders. No changes were
made in the objectives, policies or processes during

AR B RS BT A

EXER

REBERNER 2 B ERER
FEREEELRRE N - WA
ERER M 10 3 K 5 H ) 25 2 75 2R
Yoas B IA # #5 — RIEIB B AN A4S
18 e Rl Bl B AR B ST R AR
SEZRERER -

AEEITHREREMLEER
BARBBARBZREBR ZENG
BREBRRzEE  EEEEAR
SERRZERENR - ARNFE
HBRAMZEAERE  AKE
ARERAMEETRRZEEZE
ﬁ’%ﬁ%hﬁﬁﬁ%%@@ﬁ
Ko HAFEE BEBRRF  BE
HEFAUEEE o

the year.

TURNOVER 5.

Continuing operation BEKEXEK

Rental income e WA

Discontinued operation BRIEER

Sale of goods iHE Em

Total turnover and revenue EEBERRALEH

OTHER INCOME 6.

Continuing operation FERKEXER

Dividend income K E A

Gain on disposal of HEREME
investment properties 2 Was

Gain on disposal of available-for-sale  Hi & Al it &£ E
investments 2 Was

Interest income FLE WA

Sundry income B A

3

2008 2007

“®RENE C—TTLF

HK$’'000 HK$'000

FTExT FHE T

5,876 6,785

56,988 113,828

62,864 120,613
Haug A

2008 2007

—EENF —ETEF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FB T

17 805

7,152 =

- 1,959

161 850

1,896 565

9,226 4,179
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BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL
SEGMENTS

Business segments

For management purposes, the Group’s operations
are organised into three operating divisions namely
resort development, property investment and
manufacture and distribution of electronic products.
The Group’s resort development division includes
multi-purpose resort communities as well as sale of
condo hotels, residential units and club
memberships. These divisions are the basis on which
the Group reports its primary segment information.

Business segment information for the year ended
30th June, 2008 is presented below:

XBERHBEDE

BB E

REEME - ARBERAK=(E
EHE - ERNER - DER
BREUERDIHETEM - A&
BeERNERERBREZ RS
BRI EZRMEEDEEE -
EEBEUREMERE  ZFHMA
DAKEREETEDRENZ
EiE o

BE-TT/\FAAZHBELEE
TEBHEERNT

Discontinued

Continuing operations operations
BELERY BRIEERK
Manufacture
and
distribution
Resort Property of electronic
development investment Total products Consolidated
HERDH#
EBRNER  NERE #x B¥Em GRA
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERL TERL TERL TERL TER
Turnover BEH - 5,876 5,876 56,988 62,864
Results E4 |
Segment results EES 67 37,962 38,029 1,040 39,069
Unallocated corporate income KA EA KA 1,417 - 1,417
Unallocated corporate expenses A7 & A 7l%E (22,013) = (22,013)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries H&MHBA R 2 Kz 3,648 - 3,648
Finance costs BANK (3,907) (1,121) (5,028)
Share of results of a jointly ElE—BEREHAR
controlled entity i 298 298 - 298
Profit before taxation BB AR R 17,472 (81) 17,391
Tax credit REESL 432 - 432
Profit for the year EEEF 17,904 (81) 17,823




Annual Report 2008 £

Notes to the Consolidated Financial STOTemen\’rs
ire RS T

Discontinued
Continuing operations operations

REEEXR BRIERH

Manufacture

and

distribution

Resort  Property  Segment of electronic
development investment total Unallocated Total  products Consolidated

RERDH
EBNERE NERE  DREH AAE B BTER  HRAsF
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000
TR TERL TER ThER TERL TER ThER

Assets EE 194,161 196,610 390,771 201,426 592,197 - 592,197
Liabilities &f - 1,734 1,734 43,24 44,958 - 44,958
Other information: HEfEH
Additions to property,  HTEME « FE
plant and equipment Rt 15,080 143 15,823 809 16,632 249 16,881
Depreciation of n% BERAE
property, plant and g
equipment - 2,878 2,878 2,083 4,961 1,420 6,381
Release of prepaid RERNAENT
lease payments - 40 40 - 40 3 43
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Business segment information for the year ended HZE
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30th June, 2007 is presented below:

Turnover

Results
Segment results

Unallocated corporate
income

Unallocated corporate
expenses

Gain on disposal of
subsidiaries

Finance costs

Profit before taxation
Tax credit

Profit for the year

BEARK

P Bt 7
REHS

ZEBDEERMT

Discontinued
Continuing operations
=3 irm i«( A %E&

operations

BRILEH

Manufacture
and
distribution

Resort Property of electronic

—EELEARASTALERE

development  investment Total products  Consolidated
RERDH#

ERAERE  NXRE Bt  EfEm  HAEH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT TR THT THT TR

- 6,785 6,785 113,828 120,613
(563) 12,339 11,776 27 11,803
3,627 - 3,627

(29,627) - (29,627)

127,331 - 127,331

(1,838) (2,040) (3,878)

111,269 (2,013) 109,256

59 - 59

111,328 (2,013) 109,315
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Discontinued
Continuing operations operations
REBEEHK BRILES

Manufacture

and

distribution

Resort Property Segment of electronic
development  investment total  Unallocated Total products  Consolidated

RERD B
ERNER WRRE  2RE: AR Bt ETEm  HAAH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THTL TR TR THTL TR TR THTL

Assets gE 192,236 226,034 418,270 227,994 646,264 25,966 672,230

Liabilities af = 11,180 11,180 121,266 132,446 5,160 137,606

Other information: HipEH :
Additions to property,  ¥EWE - BER

plant and equipment % 151,986 482 152,468 804 153,272 4,575 157,847
Depreciation of n% BER

property, plant and FEnE

equipment - 253 253 4,498 4751 2,952 7,703
Release of prepaid RERNAENT

lease payments - 41 4 - 41 5 46
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Geographical segments

The Group's operations are principally located in
Hong Kong, the People’s Republic of China other
than Hong Kong (the “PRC"), the BVI and Panama.

The following table provides an analysis of the
Group’'s turnover by geographical market,
irrespective of the origin of the goods:

Continuing operations SE& & ¥k

Hong Kong BB
The PRC =
The BVI REBRLES

Discontinued operations 2 & It ¥ 7§
Hong Kong BB

it E 58

rEE v REMWEFTEMRE
B REARLME([HRA] -

TEEER)  RBRZHER
BEEgf5 o

THREARE B LR T I5E 5
ZEERONT (TwERZIKIR
Hr) -

Revenue
by geographical market

R ETH5 8D 2 Wi
2008 2007
—BENF —ETLHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TAET
973 1,826
4,903 4,032

- 927

5,876 6,785
56,988 113,828
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The following is an analysis of the carrying amounts REEMEMREID A BEEE
of segment assets and additions to property, plant FREENARIIEYE - BB &R
and equipment analysed by the geographical area B2 TWT :

in which the assets are located:

Carrying amounts of  Additions to property,

segment assets plant and equipment
PEEEREE FIEWE  BERRE
2008 2007 2008 2007

—EBENF —_TTLF ZBBEN\E —TTLF
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TR THAT TERT TAT

Continued operations IF@EEEETK

Hong Kong b 157,776 182,949 845 1,286
The PRC EP 38,834 40,694 707 =
The BVI RBELHS 27,017 38,860 = =
Panama Ee5 167,144 155,767 15,080 151,986

390,771 418,270 16,632 153,272

Discontinued operations B & It # 7§

Hong Kong a5 - 25,966 249 4,575
FINANCE COSTS 8. MEMRK
Continuing operations Discontinued operations Consolidated
REEERE BRALEK e b
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007

“ERNE CTTLE CRRNE CTTLF CRINE CTILR
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK§'000
TR TER TER TR TER TR

Interest expense on BRAERZY

bank borrowings wholly repayable (& 2 BT E

within five years ZHE 3,871 1,783 931 1,604 4,802 3,387
Finance charges on obligations HERNKED

under finance leases HAER 36 55 190 436 226 491

3,907 1,838 1121 2,040 5,028 3,878
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9.  TAX CREDIT 9. BEESR
Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% (2007: BAEMNEH DIRASEFEME
17.5%) on the Group's estimated assessable profits JERBAFATRE16.5% (=ZF
for the year. TEF D N175%)FTE o
The tax (credit) charge comprises: B (EE) X HBE
2008 2007
—EENF ZETLF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Continuing operation FEEE £
Hong Kong Profits Tax FEMEHR
Current year REE - 473
Over-provision in B FE B
previous years B 15 (432) (532)
(432) (59)

Discontinued operation B & IE ¥ 7
Hong Kong Profits Tax BB SN - -
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The tax credit for the year can be reconciled to the

profit before taxation as follows:

Profit before taxation
From continuing operations
From discontinued operations

Tax at Hong Kong Profits
Tax rate of 16.5%
(2007: 17.5%)
Tax effect of expenses
not deductible in determining
taxable profit
Tax effect of income
not taxable in determining
taxable profit
Tax effect of tax losses
not recognised
Over-provision in previous years

Tax credit for the year

B % A 4t 7

REFELERD

KEERIEXR

BEBNERBREK

16.5% (ZZE+4F :

17.5%) 5t &
& 7F FE R B ) B
AT 305 B 2
ZHETE
7 T B SR B F B
#EE R B A
ZHETE
RIERB I EE

ZHBHE
BTFERERE

AEZHEAEER

e M RE M A

REE IR R BER B AT S N 2
HERWMT -

2008 2007
—EEN\HF —ETLF
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#B T T& T
17,472 111,269
(81) (2,013)
17,391 109,256
2,870 19,120
5,768 7,678
(8,638) (26,528)

= 203

(432) (532)
(432) (59)
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DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

On 5th November, 2007, the Group entered into
an agreement with an independent third party to
dispose of its manufacture business, Wideland. The
disposal of the manufacture business is consistent
with the Group’s long-term strategy to focus its
resources in the resort development and property
investment business. The disposal was completed
on 3rd January, 2008 on which date the control of
the manufacture business was passed to the
acquirer.

Certain comparative figures of last financial year
were restated in these consolidated financial
statements to reflect the discontinued operations
of the manufacture business. The results and cash
flows of the discontinued operations have been

analysed as follows:

(a) Loss for the year from discontinued
operations
Turnover &R
Cost of sales Ei=R=—17 97
Gross profit EH
Other income E fib i A
Increase in fair values of KEWEAFE

investment properties 30

Distribution costs PaN =1 N
Administrative expenses 1T &
Finance costs B & P A
Loss before taxation Br 75 B &S 18
Taxation 18
Loss for the year from B R IEFEBH
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discontinued operations

FEEE

10.

ERIEEL

N-FTLF+—ARA A%
PR e e A T
R - B2 o MR
1 0 1 5 5 2 S8 L S o RS

BNEREMEREXRHFHNRER
REEE B - R EHBE—
TENF-HA=HxEX  TEE
B B3 5 755 F 12 Il 4 85 B 8 OF
Z o

EFENLBHFERNGE M
BREANEHN2HRARRZE LK
IEMSUERTS - BRIERBIE
mRkBAERESNBET :

(a) EBRIEXEBENFEEE
2008 2007
—EENE BT F
HK$’000 HK$'000
T T TB T
56,988 113,828
(52,638) (108,332)
4,350 5,496
95 595
- 330
(526) (1,532)
(2,879) (4,862)
(1,121) (2,040)
(81) (2,013)
(81) (2,013)
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(b) The net cash flows inflow (outflow)

attributable to discontinued operations

Net cash flows

Operating activities
Investing activities
Financing activities

Total net cash flows

FEER
2R
REED
BMEED

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

e R A

11.

Profit for the year has been arrived at after charging:

Staff cost, including
directors’ emoluments;
Salaries and other henefits
Share-based payment expenses
Retirement benefit scheme
contributions

Total staff costs

Auditors' remuneration:
Current year
Underprovision in prior years
Cost of inventories recognised
3 expenses
Donations
Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment
Impairment loss on trade and
other receivables
Loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Operating lease payments
on premises
Release of prepaid lease payments

Continuing operations

e M RE M A

(b) EEERKLEBNFERE

RACGRE)
2008 2007
—EENEF —EEF
HK$°000 HK$'000
F&ET FE T
545 (15)
(247) (836)
(683) (727)
(385) (1,578)

£ B 3% F

FERMEIR T FIA

Discontinued operations Consolidated

BEREER BRIEER Gel
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
ZEE\f C-TTcF ZEENE CETtF ZEENE CTT+tF
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T Tin TERL Thr T THn
BINARE
EEUEE
56 REMEN 14,602 14,331 5,061 7,377 19,663 21,708
NEROBER HRAY - 379 - - - 379
RIVRAF B
115 9% 48 9 163 188
BETHA 14,717 14,806 5,109 7,469 19,826 2,275
GERNHS
RER 500 960 - - 500 960
BEEERETR yLy] 157 - - 242 157
EABRI EERA
- - 52,638 108,332 52,638 108,332
) 1,570 1,144 = - 1,570 1,144
% BERZE
ok 4,961 4,751 1,420 2,952 6,381 7,703
BHREMENGENRE
BE 979 - - - 979 -
HENZE  BER
ZENSE 94 - - - 9% -
BEHEERHTM
2,256 2,028 926 1,129 3,182 3,157
BRENREN 40 4 3 5 03 46
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12.  PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY 12. E@ RBARREREEA
HOLDERS OF THE PARENT B g Rl
The consolidated profit attributable to equity @15}5@@57%5?&%75/\5’\]&%%
holders of the parent includes a loss of A BEEEARRR M ERE
HK$17,166,000 (2007: profit of HK$122,259,000) TR Z 518 S17,166,000/8 7T
which has been dealt with in the financial \(:EEZQJCE +mF11122,259,000
statements of the Company. ABIL) °
13. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES' 13. EEREEM=
EMOLUMENTS
(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) EExME
The emoluments paid or payable to each of AR/ \NEF(ZFTTt
the eight (2007: eight) directors were as F 0\ ke
follows: ZMEmT
Hung
Hung Wong Hung Soo Hung Lam
Kin Sang,  Kar Gee, Kai Mau, Fang Lo Lun  Lleung,  Ka Wai,
Raymond Mimi ~ Marcus ChinPing  YunTai TsanKau  Lincoln  Graham Total
HEE MIZE O BB FEY  ERF  RER BMRE HZH @t
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
Tér Tér  TExr FEr  TEn  TExr  TEr  TEr  TiEn
(Note) (Note) (Note)
(W) () (W)
Year ended 30th June, 2008 —EENEAB=THILEE
Fees BH = = = - 100 100 100 100 400
Other emoluments Efdie
Salaries and other benefits  F&REMRFF 6712 3398 881 709 - - = - 11,700
Retirement benefit RIEEHEE
scheme contributions it 3% 12 12 12 - - - - - 36
Total emoluments ape 6,724 3410 893 709 100 100 100 100 12,136
Year ended 30th June, 2007 ZZELEXAZTHLEE
Fees EH = - - - 100 100 100 100 400
Other emoluments Kt
Salaries and other benefits ~ HEREMET 5286 4326 1,151 626 - - - - 11,389
Share-hased payment HRABERZ
expenses A - - 316 - - - - - 316
Retirement benefit RICRFIE I
scheme contributions 12 12 12 - - - - - 36
Total emoluments aHe 529 4338 1,479 626 100 100 100 100 12,141
Note: During the year, in addition to the above, the Group MaE : AFEE - BrEadizih - EBTGATRHE
provided rent-free accommodation with estimated rateable ERTTHEELAE //\I%fﬁﬁi&/,it
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values of approximately HK$170,000 (2007: HK$342,000),
HK$2,325,000 (2007: HK$1,847,000) and HK$652,000
(2007: HK$469,000), respectively, to Mr. Hung Kin Sang,
Raymond, Ms. Hung Wong Kar Gee, Mimi and Mr. Hung
Kai Mau, Marcus.

B 2 EETE S B A 170,000
T (ZZEZE 4 : 342,0008 1) -
2,325,000/8 T (ZEZ+4F : 1,847,000
L) & 652,000 T (Z T T L F -
469,000/ 7T) °
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(b) Employees’ emoluments

The five highest paid individuals included
four (2007: four) directors of the Company,
details of whose emoluments are set out
above. The emoluments of the remaining
(2007: one) individual is as follows:

Salaries and other benefits e K HEMbEF
Retirement benefits iR R AR B ET &) 3k

scheme contributions

During both years, no emoluments were paid by
the Group to the five highest paid individuals,
including directors, as an inducement to join or
upon joining the Group or as compensation for
loss of office. During both years, no directors waived
any emoluments.

4B

N

B 75 ¥R 5 I &

(b) EEMS

A&

B ALeENA

(ZZEZE+F UK E

= - HMeFB#EREL
X HBp—% (ZFEZL

F:—B)ALTzHE2m

T

2008 2007

—BENE —ZETLF

HK$'000 HK$'000

TE T FAT

621 660

12 12

633 672

RAREFEAR - AEEYLER
hEmZma AL (BRES) XM
ERFHBMESMBAREE 2
F 0 IR INATRER BB 1 S R
BB ES - RAREF
BA - JEZIWENEWEUEMR

M -
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14. EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE

14.

Diluted earnings (loss) per share has not been

presented because the exercise price of the share

options granted is higher than the average market

price of shares for both years.

For continuing and discontinued operations

The calculation of the basic earnings per share

attributable to the equity holders of the parent is

based on the following data:

Earnings for the purposes

of basic earnings per share

Weighted average number

/78

of ordinary shares for the purposes
of basic earnings per share

(arrived after eliminating the shares
in the Company held by

Applied Investment)

A EERENEF
FER A 2 &7

A EERERNBFA

BREF (BE)

ERESRN (BE)EBEHE
B HEAETHEREZITE
EeREz—_ZZN\FA=+

Btk —ZEZ2LFA=+AHIE

FEBRHZ2FHTE -
BEREROCKRIEEK

AERRRRRRAARGEEK
EARAMMTE

R 2 it F R

Z#H (EMRE
BREREARARAZ

D& EE)

2008 2007
—EENE —EETLF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TBT
17,823 110,173

2008 2007
—EENE —ETLF
No. of shares No. of shares
v g=| &% & B
840,443,073 858,835,347
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For continued operations

The calculation of the basic earnings per share from
continuing operations attributable to the equity
holders of the parent is based on the following

data:

Earnings for the purposes
of basic earnings per share
Add: Loss for the year
from the discontinued operations

Earnings for the purposes

of basic earnings per share
from continuing operations

Weighted average number

of ordinary shares for the purposes

of basic earnings per share

(arrived after eliminating the shares

in the Company held by
Applied Investment)

B W BHRE M

n‘/T\
BFEREXEK
STEREFELCEXERT N AE
mFEABLGEREXRZAN W
™
2008 2007
—EENEF —EEHF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHE T FHBT
FFEEREAKREF
Frie B =z & A 17,823 110,173
m:REBERIE
XN FEEBE 81 2,013
ATESFRREFE
WE R 7 BR
EFFTER A 2 & F 17,904 112,186
2008 2007
—EENEF —EEF
No. of shares No. of shares
R EE % 2 B
SFEEREAKNZEFET
A Z i F R0
HAE (ThEMBRE D
BERHREARRRZ
BhkEE)
840,443,073 858,835,347
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For discontinued operations

The calculation of the basic loss per share from
discontinued operations attributable to the equity

BRIEER

holders of the parent is based on the following

data:

Loss for the purposes
of basic loss per share

Weighted average number
of ordinary shares for the purposes
of basic loss per share
(arrived after eliminating the shares
in the Company held by
Applied Investment)

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Fair value

At 1st July, 2006

Transferred to properties held for sale
Increase in fair values

At 30th June, 2007
Increase in fair values
Additions of properties
Disposals of properties
Disposals of subsidiaries

At 30th June, 2008

AAERBERIEEFE RAES
FAEARGBSREXREBENT

2008 2007
—EENE —EELF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHE T T#& T
STESRANREIE
FiR A 2 BB (81) (2,013)
2008 2007
—ZEEN\HF —TETF
No. of shares No. of shares
B EE &% & B
TEEREARNERE
FrER A 2 In#E S 55
e B (Th 4 M
BENREREARQT
ZBEHBEE)
840,443,073 858,835,347
15. REYHE
HK$'000
T T
AFE
R—ZZTEZEFE+HA—H 207,500
ERIAGHEZME (59,000)
NF{ELEZ 10,530
W_ggtif\ﬁ =+H 159,030
NEEE 33,950
NE Y E 29,325
HEwE (29,325)
HE B AR (2,080)
RZEZENFSA=TH 190,900



Annual Report 2008 £

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

During the year ended 30th June, 2007, the Group
entered into a binding agreement with an
independent third party for the disposal of leasehold
investment properties, which was held in Hong
Kong under medium-term leases, with carrying value
of approximately HK$59,000,000 for a consideration
of HK$59,000,000. As such, the investment
properties have been reclassified as properties held
for sale. The transaction was completed during the
year.

The fair values of the investment properties of the
Group at 30th June, 2008 have been arrived at on
the basis of valuation as at the balance sheet date
carried out by Asset Appraisal Ltd., an independent
firm of qualified professional valuers not connected
with the Group. Asset Appraisal Limited is a member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors (“HKIS")
and has appropriate qualifications and recent
experience in the valuation of similar properties at
the relevant locations. The valuation, which conform
to HKIS Valuation Standards on properties, was
arrived at by reference to market evidence of
transaction prices for similar properties or net rental
income allowing for reversionary income potential.

All of the Group’s property interests held under
operating leases to earn rental or for capital
appreciation purposes are measured using the fair
value model and are classified and accounted for
as investment properties.

The carrying values of investment properties held
by the Group comprise:

Held in Hong Kong: REBRFE :
Long-term leases R EIFE 4
Medium-term leases HEAE 49

Held outside Hong Kong:

Medium-term leases HERFE 49

REBAIINE T FHE

e M RE M A

R _EE+FNA=ZTBHIEE
T AEEE—BIE=FF L
T—EBORNZHE - BE
BRHE & A 459,000,000 T 2 &%
EWE - R{E/R59,000,000%
JC o AR EWMEWRIERGHE
ZOERNGEEERBERY D
FAE% «c ZBEEEARNFTK ©

gk 7%

RZZTN\FRA=1H £&
BIREME L A FEEDNREH
AEETEBMECHIBERDFE
HEMEENEBRRBRAFRN
ZBETZHEERL - ERES
AEMmSZE ([EEREME
KEREGEERME/MMT
EEEIYE 2 AERLSR - M&
EELIRETSHNEME S TE
ZABERBHEMBENEMLER
E)REL - WERMS EEUY
ERXHEBBELRAEIEE

ERmz#HeBRaER[/ -

PIERKRBUABEESHREZY
EEamERS BAIAERE
RIBEARFEITDEFTEMD IR
REINR/EEDE -

AEEHBEZREYFE 2IREE
B

2008 2007
—EENEF —ETLF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
153,500 125,000

- 2,080

37,400 31,950
190,900 159,030
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16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Properties
under Land and Leasehold
development buildings improvements
R 1#HR e
n% B¥ HES

HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEn TiEn ThL

16. M¥ - BMERRZRE

Furniture,
Plantand fixtures and Motor Motor
machinery  equipment vehicles boats Total
BER BR %E
R L hE it Af

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$000
TiEn TiEn ThL TiEn TiEn

(note)
(Bi3E)

Cost WA

At 1st July, 2006 RZEE/FLA-A 143,136 4,879 13,036 67,262 60,781 13,475 1,650 304,219
Additions E 151,986 - 1,205 3,988 485 183 - 157,847
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAR (143,138) - - - - - - (143,138)
At 30th June, 2007 RZBELERFZHR 151984 4,879 14,241 71,250 61,266 13,658 1,650 318,928
Additions E 15,080 = 54 132 99 1516 = 16,881
Transfers g3 - - - (139) 139 = = =
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHBRAR - (1,734) (1,731) (711,283) (55,271) (2,237) - (132,216)
Written off i = = = = (365) (225) - (590)
At 30th June, 2008 R-ZZNEAB=+H 167064 3,145 12,564 = 5,868 12,712 1,650 203,003
Depreciation il |

At 1st July, 2006 RZEZ/FtA-A - 1,086 5,471 59,884 60,103 6,340 28 132,912
Provided for the year ERRE - 57 2,280 2,605 219 2212 330 7,703
At 30th June, 2007 RZZSLERA=TH = 1,143 7,751 62,489 60,322 8,55 358 140,615
Provided for the year FEZBE = 33 2,399 1,128 254 2,037 330 6,381
Disposal of subsidiaries HENBAR - (1,103) (291) (63,617) (54,854) (2,061) - (121,926)
Written back i = = = = (287) (209) - (496)
At 30th June, 2008 RZEENERB=1H - 7 9,859 - 5,435 8,519 688 24,574
Carrying values BEfE

At 30th June, 2008 R=BZNEABZTHE 167064 307 2,705 - 433 4,193 962 178,429
At 30th June, 2007 RZBEELEAASTE 151,984 3736 6,490 8,761 944 5,106 1,292 178,313
Note: M &E -

Subsequent to the balance sheet date, the Group has accepted
the terms of a letter of intent (“Letter on Intent”) from an
independent third party, J& Land Acquisition and Development
LLC ("J&J"), for the acquisition of the Group’s 100% interest in
certain properties under development in Panama (the “Panama
Project”) at a consideration of US$39 million (approximately
HK$304 million). At the balance sheet date, the carrying value of
the Panama Project was approximately HK$167 million as set out
above. The terms of the Letter of Intent are not binding on the
Group, and the Group and J&J will enter into a formal sale and
purchase agreement in respect of the proposed transaction, the
terms of which are still in the process of negotiation and yet to
be finalised.
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REEARRBE ASEEKES—BILP
=% ' J& Land Acquisition and Development
LLC([&J)) zBmE ([BmE]) Z &R A LR
#%{539,000,0003% 7T (49304,000,000/% 7T) W i
rEEEEESERREE ((BE€2FEE]) 2%
BHREMEZAESZ —BENANZ FEEAE
H BE2FEE-REEBEONLERABETNA
167,000,000/ 7T ° i 2 M E 2 RRE A EE I
BARNORS - RAKERIGSESET A
ZEEFREZEALN EBEAREAEITEZR
RAEERK ©
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The carrying values of land and buildings held by
the Group comprises:

Freehold properties held in Canada EMEXFEFEZ
KAEREDE
Leasehold properties held in Hong Kong £ & /8 LA FR HAFH 49
under medium-term leases BEZHEME
Held in the PRC under long-term fER B AR B £ 4
land use rights EREREE

The properties under development of the Group
are freehold properties located in Panama.

The carrying values of property, plant and
equipment of the Group include an aggregate
amount of HK$1,632,000 (2007: HK$11,756,000)
in respect of assets held under finance leases.

OTHER ASSETS 17.

Other assets of the Group represent antiques held
for long-term investment purposes. In the opinion
of the directors, the other assets are worth at least
their carrying value at the balance sheet date.

e M RE M A

AREEFE 2 L REFREE
B

2008 2007
—®BNE -FTLA
HK$"000 HK$'000
TR THT
2,556 2,556

- 656

516 524

3,072 3,736

AEBRHEERT 2MERURN
EEBZKkAXEDE -

REBZYE - BEREZHEZE
HEREREREMENFEZE
E{RE#1,632,0008 L (ZEF
+ 4 : 11,756,000 7T) °

Htt&EE
AEEEMEER/IERPNER
BRAEZEE EFR/ RE

EABERBRAREEEDKRE
BREE(HD) -
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INTEREST IN A JOINTLY CONTROLLED

ENTITY

Cost of unlisted investment
in a jointly controlled entity
Share of post-acquisition profits

P — il 2k

As at 30th June, 2008, the Group had interest in

the following jointly controlled entity:

Form of
Name of business
jointly controlled entity  structures
HEEHAAER EBEREA

Quorum Island (BVI) Limited Corporation

("Quorum") BERAA

Pursuant to an agreement dated 11th August, 2006
(the “Agreement”) entered into by Quorum, Applied
Toys Limited (“Applied Toys”), Applied Enterprises
Limited (“Applied Enterprises”), all of which were
wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company, and
Interlsle Holdings Limited (“Interlsle”), an independent

third party:

(1) Applied Toys and Applied Enterprises agreed
to receive US$30 million (equivalent to
HK$234,000,000) from Quorum for the
redemption of 50% of the issued share capital
of Quorum and the settlement of all
indebtednesses owed by Quorum to the Group;

and

Place of
incorporation/
operation
AR

The BVI
RERELES

LR HI R
L™ ?xéfZﬁXK
J& 15 U B8 18 0 A

18. R—EHEEH QRS
2008 2007

—EE)N\F —E2EFTLF

HK$'000 HK$'000

585 FHT

26,719 36,469

298 —

27,017 36,469

RZZBZFNFARNA=1H K&
Eé S BI) AL (R #E m R R AR

Proportion of
issued share
capital held

shares held by the Group Principal activities

rRERALD
BRITRALA FEXH

%

B

50 Resort and property
development

EBRARMEER

B ¥ Quorum * Applied Toys
Limited ([Applied Toys]) -
Applied Enterprises Limited
([Applied Enterprises]) (& &7
NAElZz 2 &K B AR Kinterlsle
Holdings Limited ([Interlsle])
(B—RBUE= %)75/\_?7/\
FNA+—BRE] 2 WH®
[Mhal)

(1)  Applied Toys & Applied
Enterprises[d & Uz
Quorum 30,000,000%71
(%8 % 7 234,000,000/%
7T) - A AT E B Quorum
FT4F 2 50% 2 17 % {9
838 QuorumfE X K &£ H
ZHEAaE: &
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(2) Interlsle agreed to subscribe 50% equity
interest in Quorum for a consideration of
Uuss$21 million (equivalent to
HK$163,800,000).

The Agreement was completed on 9th April, 2007.
Quorum became a jointly controlled entity of the
Group and a gain on disposal of HK$127,331,000
was recognised in profit or loss. The sole asset of
Quorum upon the date of the completion of the
Agreement is a piece of land held for development
in the BVI together with certain development costs
capitalised (collectively referred to as the “Land”).

Upon completion of the Agreement, Interlsle paid
US$8 million (equivalent to HK$62,400,000) to
Quorum. Quorum then repaid US$8 million
(equivalent to HK$62,400,000) to the Group and
issued a promissory note (the “Promissory Note")
due for repayment on 9th April, 2008 to the Group
for the remaining balance of US$22 million
(equivalent to HK$171,600,000). Details are set out
in note 23.

On 16th April, 2008, a memorandum of
amendments to the Agreement (the
“Memorandum”) has been entered into between
Quorum, Applied Toys, Applied Enterprises and
Interlsle to extend the due date of the Promissory
Note to 9th April, 2009. In addition, Interlsle made
a payment of US$1,250,000 (equivalent to
HK$9,750,000) to the Group in discharging part of
its outstanding consideration for the subscription
of shares of Quorum. The sum received was credited
to the Group's interest in Quorum as compensation
to the reduction in the Group’s share of net assets.
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The summarised financial information in respect of
the Group’s interest in a jointly controlled entity
which is accounted for using the equity method is
set out below:

Non-current assets M E E
Current assets mEE E
Current liabilities ViDL R=RE
Income KA
Expenses X

At 30th June, 2008, included in the balance sheet
of Quorum is the Land with carrying amount of
HK$162,192,000 (2007: HK$156,094,000), of
which HK$81,096,000 (2007: HK$78,047,000)
relates to the Group'’s interest. The market value of
the Land is US$51 million (equivalent to
HK$397,800,000) which has been arrived at on the
basis of a valuation carried out on that date by
Edward Childs, a member of the Royal Institution
of Chartered Surveyors in United Kingdom (“RICS”)
who has experience in the valuation of resort and
commercial property in the Caribbean region. The
valuation, which conforms to RICS Appraisal and
Valuation Standards, was arrived at by reference to
market evidence of transaction prices for similar
properties and assumed that full planning consent
will be granted for the development of the Land in
accordance with the Master Plan approved on 31st
January, 2007 (the “Master Plan 2007").

In August 2007, a challenge to the Master Plan
2007 has been made by a non-profit civil
environmental organisation through judicial review
by court in the BVI. Quorum has applied to the
court to dismiss the action and the management is
confident that the challenge will not have material
adverse impact to the development of the Land
and its carrying value.

?TZ*/E AR C AREEES—E
HEESA 72%\ 2 iEER
ﬁmei

2008 2007
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81,096 78,047
41,992 50,700
96,072 92,278
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